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1. Identify the major financial statements and 
other means of financial reporting.

2. Explain how accounting assists in the efficient 
use of scarce resources.

3. Identify some of the challenges facing 
accounting.

4. Identify the objectives of financial reporting.

After studying this chapter, you should be able 
to:
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5. Explain the need for accounting standards.

6. Identify the major policy-setting bodies and 
their role in the standards-setting process.

7. Explain the meaning of generally accepted 
accounting principles.

8. Describe the impact of user groups on the 
standards-setting process.

9. Understand issues related to ethics and 
financial accounting.
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• Accounting identifies, measures and 
communicates financial information.

• This information is about economic entities.

• Information is communicated to interested 
parties such as investors, creditors, unions 
and governmental agencies.

Characteristics of Financial Characteristics of Financial 

AccountingAccounting



Financial Reporting aids users in 
the allocation of scarce 

resources.

Accounting and the Efficient Use Accounting and the Efficient Use 
of Scarce Resourcesof Scarce Resources



The objectives are specified in Statement of 
Financial Accounting Concepts No. 1.

The objectives are as follows:

• Information provided must be useful in 
investment and credit decisions.

• Information must be useful in assessing cash 
flow prospects.

• Information must be about enterprise resources, 
claims to those resources and changes therein.

Objectives of Financial Reporting Objectives of Financial Reporting 
by Business Enterprisesby Business Enterprises



• The profession has developed GAAP 
that present fairly, clearly and 
completely the financial operations 
of the enterprise.

• GAAP consist of authoritative 
pronouncements issued by certain 
accounting bodies.

Generally Accepted Accounting Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP)Principles (GAAP)



• Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

• American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA)

• Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB)

• Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB)

The Standard Setting Process: The Standard Setting Process: 
Parties InvolvedParties Involved



• The FASB enjoys the following advantages 
compared to its predecessor, the 
Accounting Principles Board:

* smaller membership

* greater autonomy

* increased independence of members

* broader representation on the Board

The Financial Accounting The Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB)Standards Board (FASB)



• In establishing financial standards, the FASB 
follows a due process procedure. 

• The due process procedure gives time to 
interested persons to make their views 
known to the Board.

FASBFASB
Due ProcessDue Process
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• Standards and Interpretations

• Financial Accounting Concepts

• Technical Bulletins

• Emerging Issues Task Force Statements

Major Types of FASB Major Types of FASB 
PronouncementsPronouncements



Financial
Accounting
Foundation

FASB

Financial
Accounting 
Standards
Advisory
Council

GASB

Governmental
Accounting 
Standards
Advisory
Council

Staff and
Task Force

Organizational Structure for Organizational Structure for 
Setting StandardsSetting Standards



House of GAAPHouse of GAAP



• Non-financial measurements need to be 
developed and reported.

• More information needs to be provided 
regarding soft assets (intangibles).

• Forward-looking information, in addition to 
historical information, must be provided.

• Statements may have to be prepared on a 
real-time basis (and not just periodically).

Challenges Facing Financial Challenges Facing Financial 
AccountingAccounting



An expectations gap exists between the

• public’s perception of the profession’s 
accountability and profession’s perception of 
its accountability to the public.

Corrective steps include the setting up of the: 

• SEC Practice sections and 

• Public Oversight Board.

The Expectations GapThe Expectations Gap



• The International Accounting Standards 
Committee (IASC) was formed in 1973.

• The objective was to narrow divergence in 
international financial reporting.

• There are many similarities between U.S. 
and International accounting standards.

• The concern is that international standards 
may not be as rigorous as U.S. standards.

International Accounting International Accounting 
StandardsStandards
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1. Describe the usefulness of a conceptual 
framework.

2. Describe the FASB's efforts to construct a 
conceptual framework.

3. Understand the objectives of financial 
reporting.

4. Identify the qualitative characteristics of 
accounting information.

After studying this chapter, you should be able 
to:
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5. Define the basic elements of financial 
statements.

6. Describe the basic assumptions of accounting.

7. Explain the application of the basic principles 
of accounting.

8. Describe the impact that constraints have on 
reporting accounting information.
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• The Framework was to be the 
foundation for building a set of 
coherent accounting standards and 
rules. 

• The Framework is to be a reference of 
basic accounting theory for solving 
emerging practical problems of 
reporting. 

Objectives of the Conceptual FrameworkObjectives of the Conceptual Framework



• The FASB has issued seven Statements of 
Financial Accounting Concepts (SFACs) to 
date (Statements 1 through 7.)

• These statements set forth major 
recognition and reporting issues.

• Statement 4 pertains to reporting by non-
business entities.

• The other six statements pertain to 
reporting by business enterprises.

Statements of Financial Accounting ConceptsStatements of Financial Accounting Concepts



• Statement 1

• Statement 2

• Statement 6

• Statement 4

• Statement 5

• Statement 7

• Objectives of Financial 
Reporting (Business)

• Qualitative 
Characteristics

• Elements of Financial 
Statements  (replaces 3)

• Objectives of Financial 
Reporting (Non-business)

• Recognition and 
Measurement Criteria

• Using Cash Flows

Brief TitleStatement

Statements of Financial Accounting ConceptsStatements of Financial Accounting Concepts



The Framework has three different 
levels,comprised of:

• The first level consists of objectives.

• The second level explains financial elements 
and characteristics of information.

• The third level incorporates recognition and 
measurement criteria.

Overview of the Conceptual FrameworkOverview of the Conceptual Framework



Conceptual Framework for Financial ReportingConceptual Framework for Financial Reporting



To provide information:

• about economic resources, the claims on 
those resources and changes in them.

• that is useful to those making investment 
and credit decisions.

• that is useful to present and future 
investors, creditors in assessing future cash 
flows.

• to individuals who reasonably understand 
business and economic activities.

Basic Objectives of Financial ReportingBasic Objectives of Financial Reporting



Hierarchy of Accounting QualitiesHierarchy of Accounting Qualities



• Primary qualities of accounting information 
are relevance and reliability.

• Secondary qualities are comparability and 
consistency of reported information.

Qualitative Characteristics of Accounting Qualitative Characteristics of Accounting 

InformationInformation



“Relevance of information means information
ccapable of making a difference in a decision 

context.”

Ingredients of relevant information are:

• Timeliness

• Predictive value

• Feedback value

Primary Characteristic of Accounting Primary Characteristic of Accounting 

Information: RelevanceInformation: Relevance



Information is reliable when it can be relied on 
to represent the true, underlying situation.

The ingredients of reliable information are:

• verifiability

• representational faithfulness

• neutrality (unbiased)

Primary Characteristic of Accounting Primary Characteristic of Accounting 

Information: RelevanceInformation: Relevance



Comparability: the similar measurement and 
reporting for different enterprises.

Consistency: application of the same 
accounting treatment to similar events by an 
enterprise period to period.

Secondary Characteristics of Accounting Secondary Characteristics of Accounting 

InformationInformation



• Assets

• Liabilities

• Equity

• Investment by 
Owners

• Distributions to 
Owners

• Comprehensive 
Income

• Revenues

• Expenses

• Gains

• Losses

Basic Elements of Financial StatementsBasic Elements of Financial Statements



Basic
Assumptions

1. Economic
entity

2. Going
concern

3. Monetary
unit

4. Periodicity

Principles

1. Historical     
cost

2. Revenue 
recognition

3. Matching
4. Full

disclosure

Constraints

1. Cost benefit
2. Materiality
3. Industry 

practices
4. Conservatism

Recognition and Measurement CriteriaRecognition and Measurement Criteria
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1. Understand basic accounting terminology.

2. Explain double entry rules.

3. Identify steps in the accounting cycle.

4. Record transactions in journals, post to ledger 
accounts, and prepare a trial balance.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:
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5. Explain the reasons for preparing 
adjusting entries.

6. Prepare closing entries.

7. Explain how inventory accounts are 
adjusted at year-end.

8. Prepare a 10-column work sheet.

Chapter 3: The Accounting Information SystemsChapter 3: The Accounting Information Systems



• Accounting data is represented by the 
following relationship among the 
assets, liabilities and owners’ equity of 
a business:  

Assets = Liabilities + Owners’ Equity

• The equation must be in balance after 
every recorded transaction in the 
system.

The Basic Accounting EquationThe Basic Accounting Equation



• Accounting information is based on the 
double entry system.

• An account is an arrangement of transactions 
affecting a given asset, liability or other 
element.

• Under this system, the two-sided effect of a 
transaction is recorded in the appropriate 
accounts.

• The recording is done by means of a “debit-
credit” convention (set of rules) applying to 
all accounts. 

The Double Entry SystemThe Double Entry System



The system records the two-sided 
effect of transactions

Transaction Two-sided effect

Bought furniture for cash  Decrease in one asset
Increase in another asset

Took a loan in cash Increase in an asset
Increase in a liability

The Double Entry SystemThe Double Entry System



Note that the accounting equation equality is 
maintained after recording

each transaction.

The Double Entry SystemThe Double Entry System



Asset

Expense

Debit

Debit

Revenue

Liability Equity

Credit Credit

Credit

Normal balance in account

The Account and the DebitThe Account and the Debit--Credit ConventionCredit Convention



Expanded Basic Equation and Debit/Credit Rules Expanded Basic Equation and Debit/Credit Rules 
and Effectsand Effects



• Debit entries in an 
asset account

• Debit entries in an 
expense account

• Credit entries in a 
liability account

• Credit entries in 
equity account

• Credit entries in a 

revenue account

• Credit entries in an 
asset account

• Credit entries in an 
expense account

• Debit entries in a 
liability account

• Debit entries in 
equity account

• Debit entries in a 
revenue account  

Balance increases Balance decreases

The DebitThe Debit--Credit ConventionCredit Convention



Owners’ Equity

Net Income

Investments
by Owners

+

Net Loss

Dividends or
Withdrawals

-

Ownership (Equity) StructureOwnership (Equity) Structure



1. Analyze the transaction
2. Journalize the transaction
3. Post the transaction to accounts in ledger
4. Prepare the (unadjusted) trial balance
5. Prepare necessary adjusting journal entries
6. Prepare the adjusted trial balance
7. Prepare financial statements
8. Prepare closing journal entries for the year
9. Prepare the post-closing trial balance

The Accounting Cycle: StepsThe Accounting Cycle: Steps



EndBegin

Accounting period

Adjusting
Journal
Entries

Financial
Statements

Closing
Entries

Start over 

7

6

5

Unadjusted
Trial

Balance

4
Originating

Journal
Entries

2

8

Adjusted
Trial

Balance

Post to
Ledger

3

Post-Closing 
Trial Balance

9

The Accounting Cycle: StepsThe Accounting Cycle: Steps



Adjusting entries are needed for:

• Recognizing revenue for the period.

• Matching expenses with revenues they 
helped generate.

• Adjusting entries are required every time 
financial statements are prepared.

Adjusting Journal EntriesAdjusting Journal Entries



Adjusting
Unearned Revenue

Recording 
Accrued Revenue

Revenues received
in cash 

and
recorded as liabilities

Revenues earned
but not yet

recorded
in  books 

Adjusting Entries: Recognizing RevenueAdjusting Entries: Recognizing Revenue



Adjusting
Prepayments for

Expenses

Recording 
Accrued Expense

Prepayments made
in cash 

and
recorded as assets

Expense incurred
but not yet 

recorded
in  books

Adjusting Entries: Matching ExpensesAdjusting Entries: Matching Expenses



• Closing entries are made to close all nominal 
accounts (revenue and expense accounts) for 
the year.

• Real (or Permanent) accounts (balance sheet 
accounts) are not closed.

• Dividend account is closed to Retained 
Earnings account.

Closing Journal EntriesClosing Journal Entries



Dividends

4

Ret. Earnings

Revenue

2

Income Summary

Expense

1

Scheme of Closing EntriesScheme of Closing Entries

3



• In a periodic inventory system, closing 
entries are made to record cost of goods sold 
and ending inventory.

• In a perpetual inventory system, such entries 
are not required.

Closing Entries: Periodic Inventory SystemClosing Entries: Periodic Inventory System



• A worksheet is a multiple column form that may 
be used in the adjustment process and in 
preparing financial statements. 

• The use of a worksheet is optional and not a 
permanent accounting record.  

• The worksheet does not replace the financial 
statements.

Using a WorksheetUsing a Worksheet



• Prepare a trial balance on the worksheet.

• Enter the adjustments in the adjustments 
column.

• Enter adjusted balances in the adjusted trial 
balance columns.

• Extend adjusted trial balance amounts to 
appropriate financial statement columns.

• Total the statement columns, compute net 
income (loss), and complete the worksheet.

Steps in Preparing a WorksheetSteps in Preparing a Worksheet
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1. Identify the uses and limitations of an 
income statement.

2. Prepare a single-step income statement.

3. Prepare a multiple-step income statement.

4. Explain how irregular items are reported.

5. Explain intraperiod tax allocation.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 4: Income Statement and Related Chapter 4: Income Statement and Related 
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6. Explain where earnings per share 
information is reported.

7. Prepare a retained earnings 
statement.

8. Explain how other comprehensive 
income is reported.

Chapter 4: Income Statement and Related Chapter 4: Income Statement and Related 
InformationInformation



• Evaluate the past performance of the 
enterprise.

• Provide a basis for predicting future 
performance.

• Help assess the risk or uncertainty of 
achieving future cash flows.

Usefulness of Income StatementUsefulness of Income Statement



• Items that cannot be measured 
reliably are not reported in the 
income statement.

• Income numbers are affected by the 
accounting methods employed.

• Income measurement involves 
judgment.

Limitations of the Income StatementLimitations of the Income Statement



• This statement presents information in 
broad categories.

• Major sections are Revenues and 
Expenses. 

• The Earnings per Share amount is shown 
at the bottom of the statement. 

• There is no distinction between 
operating and non-operating activities.

The Single Step Income StatementThe Single Step Income Statement



Revenues

Revenues
Sales
Other Revenues

Expenses
Cost of Goods Sold
Selling & Admin. Exp.
Interest Expense
Income Tax Expense

Expenses

Earnings per
Share

Net Income

-

=

The Single Step Income StatementThe Single Step Income Statement



• The presentation divides information 
into major sections on the statement.

• The statement distinguishes operating 
from non-operating activities.

• Continuing operations are shown 
separately from irregular items.

• The income tax effects are shown 
separately as well.

The Multiple Step Income StatementThe Multiple Step Income Statement



Operating
Section

Sales Revenue
less: Cost of Goods Sold
less: Selling Expenses
less: Administrative Expenses

1

Add: Other Revenues and Gains
Less: Other Expenses and Losses

2

Income Tax3

Irregular
Items

Discontinued Operations (net of tax)
Extraordinary Items (net of  tax)4

Earnings per Share6

The Multiple Step Income StatementThe Multiple Step Income Statement

Non-Operating
Section

Net Income5



Discontinued operations refer to the 
disposal of a segment. To qualify:

• The segment must be a distinct line of business

• Its assets and operations must be 
distinguishable from other assets and 
operations.

• A distinction is made between:

Ø the segment’s results of operations and

Ø the disposal of the segment’s assets

Irregular Item: Discontinued OperationsIrregular Item: Discontinued Operations



There are two important dates in 
reporting discontinued operations:

• the measurement date (when 
management commits itself to a plan 
of segment’s disposal) and

• the disposal date (the date of sale of 
the segment).

Reporting Discontinued OperationsReporting Discontinued Operations



• Extraordinary items are:

nonrecurring material items that

differ significantly from typical activities

• Extraordinary items must meet two tests:

they must be unusual and

they must be infrequent 

• The environment in which the business 
operates is of primary importance

Irregular Item: Extraordinary ItemsIrregular Item: Extraordinary Items



• Losses from write-down or write-off of 
receivables, inventories, etc. 

• Gains and losses from exchange or 
translation of foreign currency

• Gains and losses from the abandonment 
of property used in business

• Effects of strike

• Adjustments or accruals on long term 
contracts.

Extraordinary Items: what they Extraordinary Items: what they are notare not



• Items that are unusual or infrequent, 
but not both.

• If material, disclose separately.

• Do not disclose net of taxes.

Unusual Gains and LossesUnusual Gains and Losses



An accounting change results when:

• a new generally accepted principle, 
different from the generally accepted one in 
use, is adopted.

• A change in principle is to be distinguished 
from a change in estimate.

• A change from FIFO to LIFO method in 
inventory costing is an example.

Irregular Item: Change in Accounting PrincipleIrregular Item: Change in Accounting Principle



• The effect of the change is to be 
reported as a retroactive adjustment of 
the financial statements presented. 

• Any cumulative effect of the change for 
prior periods not presented is recorded as 
an adjustment to beginning retained 
earnings of the earliest year presented.

Irregular Item: Change in Accounting PrincipleIrregular Item: Change in Accounting Principle



• Accounting estimates will change as 
new events occur, more experience is 
acquired or additional information is 
obtained.

• Changes in accounting estimates are 
accounted for in period of change and 
future periods.

Irregular Item: Changes in Accounting Irregular Item: Changes in Accounting 
EstimatesEstimates



• Tax expense for year related to 
specific items.

• Used for:

– Income from continuing operations

– Discontinued operations

– Extraordinary items

– Change in accounting principle

IntraIntra--period Tax Allocationperiod Tax Allocation



Earnings per share is:

• Computed as:

Net Income less Preferred Dividends

Weighted Average of Common Shares Outstanding

• Disclosed on the income statement for all the 
major sections.

• Is subject to dilution (reduction).

Earnings Per ShareEarnings Per Share



• Retained earnings are increased by net income 
and decreased by net loss and dividends for the 
year.

• Cumulative effects on prior years from a change in 
accounting principle are shown as adjustments to 
the beginning balance in retained earnings.

• Corrections of errors in prior period financial 
statements are shown as prior period adjustments
to the beginning balance in retained earnings.

• Any part of retained earnings, appropriated for a 
specific purpose, is shown as restricted earnings.

Retained Earnings StatementRetained Earnings Statement



All changes in equity during a period, 
except those resulting from investments 

by or distributions to owners.

Comprehensive IncomeComprehensive Income



Must be displayed as:

• A separate statement of 
comprehensive income OR

• Combined income statement and 
comprehensive income statement OR

• Part of statement of stockholders’
equity

Other Comprehensive IncomeOther Comprehensive Income
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1. Identify the uses and limitations of a 
balance sheet.

2. Identify the major classifications of the 
balance sheet.

3. Prepare a classified balance sheet using the 
report and account formats.

4. Identify balance sheet information 
requiring supplemental disclosure.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 5: Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Chapter 5: Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash 
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5. Identify major disclosure techniques for the 
balance sheet.

6. Indicate the purpose of the statement of 
cash flows.

7. Identify the content of the statement of 
cash flows.

8. Prepare a statement of cash flows.

9. Understand the usefulness of the statement 
of cash flows.

Chapter 5: Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Chapter 5: Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash 

Flows SystemsFlows Systems
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The balance sheet provides information for 
evaluating:

üCapital structure

üRates of return

üAnalyzing an enterprise’s:
üLiquidity

üSolvency 

üFinancial flexibility

Balance Sheet: UsefulnessBalance Sheet: Usefulness



• Most assets and liabilities are stated at 
historical cost.

• Judgments and estimates are used in 
determining many of the items.

• The balance sheet does not report items 
that can not be objectively determined.

• It does not report information regarding 
off-balance sheet financing.

Balance Sheet: LimitationsBalance Sheet: Limitations



Guidelines for reporting assets and 
liabilities separately:

• Type or expected function in the 
central operations

• Implications for the enterprise’s 
financial flexibility

• Liquidity characteristics

Balance Sheet: ClassificationBalance Sheet: Classification



• Current Assets

• Long-term
investments

• Property, plant, and
equipment

• Intangible assets

• Other assets

• Current liabilities

• Long-term debt

• Owners’ equity
Capital stock

• Additional paid-in        
capital

• Retained earnings

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Balance Sheet: ClassificationBalance Sheet: Classification



Current assets are expected to be 
consumed, sold, or converted into cash:

either in one year or in the operating cycle, 
whichever is longer.

Current assets are presented in order of 
liquidity.

The following valuation principles are used:

1 Short-term investments at fair value

2 Accounts receivable at net realizable    
value

Current AssetsCurrent Assets



Long-term investments may be:

1 Investments in securities (bonds, stock)

2 Investments in fixed assets (land not used in 
operations)

3 Investments set aside in special funds (e.g., 
sinking fund)

4 Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries 
or affiliated companies 

LongLong--Term InvestmentsTerm Investments



Current liabilities are liquidated:
1 Either through the use of current assets, or

2 By creation of other current liabilities

Examples of current liabilities include:
• Payables resulting from acquisitions of goods 

and services

• Collections received in advance of services

• Other liabilities which will be paid in the 
short term

Current LiabilitiesCurrent Liabilities



Long-term obligations are those not 
expected to be paid within the operating 
cycle.

Examples are:

• obligations arising from specific financing
situations (issuance of bonds)

• obligations arising from ordinary business
operations (pension obligations)

• obligations that are contingent (product
warranties)

LongLong--Term LiabilitiesTerm Liabilities



Additional information may be:

1 Information not presented elsewhere, or

2 Information that qualifies items in the 
balance sheet

Supplemental information examples:

• Material events having an uncertain 
outcome

• Explanations regarding accounting policies

• Covenant restrictions 

Balance Sheet: Additional Information ReportedBalance Sheet: Additional Information Reported



• Parenthetical explanations

• Notes

• Cross references and contra items 

• Supporting schedules

Balance Sheet: Techniques of DisclosureBalance Sheet: Techniques of Disclosure



Part 1: The Statement of Cash FlowsPart 1: The Statement of Cash Flows



The cash flow statement provides 
information about:

• cash receipts (cash inflows)

• uses of cash (cash outflows) 

• during a period of time

Inflows and outflows are reported for:
• operating

• investing 

• financing activities

The Cash Flow StatementThe Cash Flow Statement



Cash Inflows and OutflowsCash Inflows and Outflows



There are two methods of preparing 
the statement of cash flows:

• Indirect method: derives cash flows 
from accrual based statements

• Direct method: derives cash flows 
directly for each source or use of cash  

Preparing a Statement of Cash FlowsPreparing a Statement of Cash Flows



Accrual Based Statements Cash Flow Statement

Income Statement
items & Changes in
Current Assets and
Current Liabilities

Operating activities:
Adjust net income for accruals
and non-cash charges to get 
cash flows

Balance Sheet: Changes in
Non-Current Assets

Investing activities:
Inflows from sale of assets and 
Outflows from purchases of 
assets

Balance Sheet: Changes in
Non-Current Liabilities

and
Equity

Financing activities:
Inflows and outflows
from loan and equity
transactions 

The Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect MethodThe Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect Method



Ratio analysis expresses the relationship 
between selected financial data.

These relationships can be expressed as:

• percentages 

• rates, or

• proportions

Ratio AnalysisRatio Analysis



Coverage ratios
Degree of protection for
long-term creditors and
investors

Debt to total assets
Times interest earned

Type What is measured Examples

Liquidity ratios

Short-term ability to 
pay maturing 
obligations

Current ratio
Quick assets ratio

Profitability 
ratios

Degree of success or
failure for a given 
period

Rate of return on assets
Earnings per share

Activity ratios Effectiveness in using 
assets employed 

Receivables turnover
Inventory turnover

Types of RatiosTypes of Ratios
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1. Identify accounting topics where time value 
of money is relevant.

2. Distinguish between simple and compound 
interest.

3. Learn how to use appropriate compound 
interest tables.

4. Identify variables fundamental to solving 
interest problems.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 6: Accounting and the Time Value of Chapter 6: Accounting and the Time Value of 

MoneyMoney



5. Solve future and present value of 1 
problems. 

6. Solve future value of ordinary and annuity 
due problems.

7. Solve present value of ordinary and annuity 
due problems.

8. Solve present value problems related to 
deferred annuities and bonds.

9. Apply expected cash flow approach to 
present value measurement.

Chapter 6: Accounting and the Time Value of Chapter 6: Accounting and the Time Value of 

MoneyMoney



• The time value of money is the 
relationship between time and money.

• According to the present value of 
money concept, a dollar earned today 
is worth more than a dollar earned in 
the future.

• This concept is used to choose among 
alternative investment proposals.

Basic Time Value ConceptsBasic Time Value Concepts



• Notes

• Leases

• Pensions

• Long-term assets

• Sinking funds

• Business combinations

• Disclosures

• Installment contracts

Accounting ApplicationsAccounting Applications



• Principal: The amount borrowed or 
invested

• Interest rate: A percentage of the 
outstanding principle.

• Time: the number of years or 
fractional portion of a year that 
principal is outstanding.

Variables in Interest ComputationsVariables in Interest Computations



Basic Time DiagramBasic Time Diagram



The appropriate interest rate 
depends on:

• the pure rate of interest 

• credit risk rate of interest

• expected inflation rate of interest

The higher the credit risk, the 
higher the interest rate.

Choosing an Interest Rate in Time Value Choosing an Interest Rate in Time Value 

MeasurementsMeasurements



Choosing an Interest Rate in Time Value Choosing an Interest Rate in Time Value 

MeasurementsMeasurements



• Simple interest is determined on the 
principal only. 

principal  x  interest rate (%)  x  time

• Compound interest is determined on:

the principal, and any interest earned (and 
not withdrawn).

• Compound interest is the typical 
computation applied in most time value 
applications.

Simple and Compound InterestsSimple and Compound Interests



• Future value of $1

• Present value of $1

• Future value of an ordinary annuity 
of $1

• Present value of an ordinary annuity 
of $1

• Present value of an annuity due of $1

Compound Interest TablesCompound Interest Tables



Frequency of 
Compounding

Interest rate per
compounding

Number of compounding
periods

Assumed interest rate per year: 12%

Annual 12% One (1)

Semi-annual 6% Two (2)

Monthly 1% Twelve (12)

Quarterly 3% Four (4)

Interest Rates and Frequency CompoundingInterest Rates and Frequency Compounding



Typically one of two types:

• Computing a future value of a known 
single sum present value.

• Computing a present value of a 
known single sum future value.

Single Sum ProblemsSingle Sum Problems



Given:

• Amount of deposit today (PV):
$50,000

• Interest rate 11%

• Frequency of compounding: Annual 

• Number of periods (5 years):    5 periods

What is the future value of this single sum?

(use Table 6-1 to determine the factor of 
1.68506)

$50,000 x (1.68506) = $84,253

Single Sum Problems: Future Value of  Single Single Sum Problems: Future Value of  Single 

SumSum



Given:

• Amount of deposit end of 5 years:  $84,253

• Interest rate (discount) rate: 11%

• Frequency of compounding: Annual 

• Number of periods (5 years): 5 periods

What is the present value of this single sum?

(use Table 6-2 to determine the factor of 
.59345)

$84,253 x (0.59345) = $50,000

Single Sum Problems: Present Value of  Single Single Sum Problems: Present Value of  Single 

SumSum



An annuity requires that:

• the periodic payments or receipts 
(rents) always be of the same 
amount,

• the interval between such payments 
or receipts be the same, and

• the interest be compounded once 
each interval.

Annuity ComputationsAnnuity Computations



Annuities may be broadly classified as:

• Ordinary annuities: where the rents 
occur at the end of the period.

• Annuities due: where rents occur at 
the beginning of the period.

Types of AnnuitiesTypes of Annuities



Given:

• Deposit made at the end of each period:  
$5,000

• Compounding: Annual

• Number of periods: Five

• Interest rate: 12%

What is future value of these deposits?

Use table 6-3 to derive the factor of 6.35285

$5,000 x (6.35285) = $ 31,764.25

Annuities: Future Value of an Ordinary AnnuityAnnuities: Future Value of an Ordinary Annuity



Given:

• Rental receipts at the end of each period: 
$6,000

• Compounding: Annual

• Number of periods (years): 5

• Interest rate: 12%

What is the present value of these receipts?

Use table 6-4 to derive the factor of 3.60478
$6,000 x (3.60478) = $ 21,628.68

Annuities: Present Value of an Ordinary AnnuityAnnuities: Present Value of an Ordinary Annuity



Given:

Deposit made at the beginning of each
period: 

$ 800

• Compounding: Annual

• Number of periods: Eight

• Interest rate 12%

What is the future value of these deposits?

Annuities: Future Value of an Annuity DueAnnuities: Future Value of an Annuity Due



First Step:
Convert future value of ordinary annuity factor to 
future value for an annuity due:

• Ordinary annuity factor: 8 periods, 12%: 12.29969
• Convert to annuity due factor: 12.29969 x 1.12: 

13.77565
Second Step:

Multiply derived factor from first step by the 
amount of the rent:

• Future value of annuity due:  $800  x  13.77565 = 
$11,020.52

Annuities: Future Value of an Annuity DueAnnuities: Future Value of an Annuity Due



Given:

• Payment made at the beginning of each
period:  $ 4.8

• Compounding: Annual

• Number of periods: Four

• Interest rate 11%

What is the present value of these payments?

Annuities: Present Value of an Annuity DueAnnuities: Present Value of an Annuity Due



First Step:
Convert future value of ordinary annuity factor to 
future value for an annuity due:

• Ordinary annuity factor: 4 periods, 11%: 3.10245
• Convert to annuity due factor: 3.10245 x 1.11 

3.44372

Second Step:
Multiply derived factor from first step by the 
amount of the rent:

• Present value of annuity due: $4.8M x 3.44372:        
$16,529,856

Annuities: Future Value of an Annuity DueAnnuities: Future Value of an Annuity Due



Deferred Annuities:

• Rents begin after a specified number 
of periods.

Valuation of Long-term Bonds:

• Two cash flows: principal paid at 
maturity and periodic interest 

payments

Complex SituationsComplex Situations



• Introduced by SFAC No. 7

• Uses a range of cash flows.

• Incorporates the probabilities of those 
cash flows to arrive at a more relevant 
measurement of present value.

Expected Cash Flow ApproachExpected Cash Flow Approach



Chapter 7: Cash and ReceivablesChapter 7: Cash and Receivables
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1. Identify items considered cash.

2. Indicate how cash and related items are 
reported.

3. Define receivables and identify the different 
types of receivables.

4. Explain accounting issues related to 
recognition of accounts receivable.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 7: Cash and ReceivablesChapter 7: Cash and Receivables



5. Explain accounting issues related to valuation 
of notes receivable.

6. Explain accounting issues related to 
recognition of notes receivable.

7. Explain accounting issues related to valuation 
of notes receivable.

8. Explain accounting issues related to 
disposition of accounts and notes receivable.

9. Explain how receivables are reported and 
analyzed.

Chapter 7: Cash and ReceivablesChapter 7: Cash and Receivables



• Definition of “cash”

• Management and control of cash

• Reporting of cash in the balance sheet

Cash and Cash Equivalents: IssuesCash and Cash Equivalents: Issues



• Cash must be readily available and be 
free of restrictions

• Cash consists of coins, currency and 
available funds

• Deposits (CDs) and short term paper 
are classified as temporary 
investments

• Post dated checks, travel advances 
and stamps on hand are not classified 
as cash

Items Comprising Items Comprising ““CashCash””



• Since cash is the most liquid asset, 
internal control of cash is imperative.

• Controls must prevent unauthorized use 
of cash.

• Management must have necessary 
information for proper use of cash.  

Management of Control and CashManagement of Control and Cash



The reporting of cash depends upon 
whether it is:

• restricted cash

• a bank overdraft or

• a cash equivalent

Reporting of CashReporting of Cash



Compensating balances:

• are amounts maintained by a corporation 
with a bank in support of existing borrowing 
arrangements.

• are identified as current assets separate 
from cash, if they relate to short-term 
loans. 

• are identified as non-current assets 
separate from cash, if they relate to long-
term loans. 

Restricted CashRestricted Cash



• Overdrafts represent checks written in 
excess of cash account.

• Overdrafts may be offset against 
available cash in another account in the 
same bank.

• Otherwise, such offsetting is not 
allowed.

Bank OverdraftsBank Overdrafts



• Types of accounts receivable

• Recognition of accounts receivable in 
the financial statements 

• Valuation of accounts receivable

• Disposition of receivable

Accounts Receivable: IssuesAccounts Receivable: Issues



There are two methods: Gross and Net

1. Gross method records discounts when 
taken by customers.

2. Net method records discounts not 
taken by customers.

Accounts Receivable Recognition: Recording Accounts Receivable Recognition: Recording 
Cash DiscountsCash Discounts



• Record revenue at 
gross amount of sales.

• When customer takes 
the discount, record 
cash discounts.

• Cash discounts reduce 
gross sales revenue.

• Record revenue at 
gross amount of sales 
less cash discount.

• When customer forfeits 
discount, record 
discounts not taken.

• Report discounts 
forfeited as other 
revenue.

GROSS method NET method

Accounts Receivable: Recording Cash Accounts Receivable: Recording Cash 
DiscountsDiscounts



• Short term receivables are reported at 
their net realizable value (NRV)

• The NRV is the net amount expected to 
be collected

• The NRV is gross accounts receivable less 
estimated non-collectible accounts. 

Valuation of Accounts ReceivableValuation of Accounts Receivable



Comparison of Methods for Estimating Comparison of Methods for Estimating 
UncollectiblesUncollectibles



Methods

Direct Write-Off Allowance

Not based on the matching Based on the matching
principle principle

Appropriate only if Must be followed if
amounts are not material amounts are material

Accounts are written off Estimated bad debts are
when determined non-collectible matched against revenue

Estimating NonEstimating Non--collectable Receivablescollectable Receivables



The estimate of non-collectible 
accounts may be based on:

1. Sales (or net sales), known as the 
Income statement approach, or

2. Accounts receivable balance, known 
as the Balance sheet approach.

Estimating NonEstimating Non--collectable Accounts: The collectable Accounts: The 
Allowance MethodAllowance Method



Short-term accounts receivable are 
shown at their net realizable value as 
follows:

• Accounts Receivable (gross): $ XXX
less: Allowance: ($ XX)
Net Realizable Value:  $   XX

Balance Sheet RepresentationBalance Sheet Representation



Recognition of Notes Receivable

• may be issued at face value or not at face 
value

• may be issued for cash/non-cash 
consideration

Valuation issues 

Disposition of notes receivable

Notes Receivable: IssuesNotes Receivable: Issues



Notes Receivable

Short term N/R Long term N/R

Record at face value
less allowance

Record at present value
of cash expected to 

be collected

Recognition of Notes ReceivableRecognition of Notes Receivable



• Notes receivable are issued at face value 
when the stated rate of interest is the same 
as the effective (market) rate.

• If the stated rate is less than the effective 
rate then a discount results.

• If the stated rate is greater than the 
effective rate then a premium results.

• The discount or premium is amortized to 
interest revenue by the effective interest 
method.

Recognition of Notes ReceivableRecognition of Notes Receivable



Issues NOT at face value

Non-interest bearing Interest bearing

1. Determine issue price on
notes receivable at 
implicit rate of interest

2. The discount/premium is 
amortized to interest
revenue by the effective 
interest method

1. Determine issue price on
notes receivable at
the effective rate of 
interest.

2. The discount/premium is 
amortized to interest
revenue by the effective 
interest method

Recognition of Notes ReceivableRecognition of Notes Receivable



• The holder of accounts or notes receivable 
may transfer them for cash.

• The transfer may be:

1. a secured borrowing or

2. a sale of receivables

• Holder retains ownership of receivables in 
a secured borrowing transaction. 

• Holder transfers ownership of receivables 
in a sale (retaining risks of collection).

Disposition of Accounts and Notes Disposition of Accounts and Notes 
ReceivableReceivable



Conditions

1. Are transferred assets isolated
from transferor? and

2. Does transferee have right to
pledge or sell assets? and

3. Has transferor divested itself 
of control through repurchase 
agreement? 

Yes Sale

No Borrowing

Transfer of Receivables: Borrowing vs. Sale Transfer of Receivables: Borrowing vs. Sale 
TreatmentTreatment



Transfers

Secured Borrowing Sale

Without RecourseWith Recourse

Continuing involvement
by

seller

No continuing
involvement by

seller 

Accounting for Transfers of ReceivablesAccounting for Transfers of Receivables



• Transferor records a finance charge.

• Transferor collects accounts receivable.

• Transferor records sales returns and sales 
discounts.

• Transferor absorbs bad debts expense.

• Transferor records interest expense on 
notes payable.

• Transferor pays on the note periodically 
from collections.

Secured Borrowing (the basics)Secured Borrowing (the basics)



• Transferor transfers ownership of 
receivables to factor.

• Factor records the (transferred) accounts as 
assets in its books.

• Transferor records any amount retained by 
transferee as “due from factor.”

• Transferor records loss on sale of 
receivables.

• Transferor records any component liability
(when appropriate).

Sale of ReceivablesSale of Receivables



Accounting for Transfers of ReceivablesAccounting for Transfers of Receivables



Chapter 8: Valuation of Inventories: A Cost Basis 
Approach

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield

Prepared by
Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Identify major classifications of 
inventory.

2. Distinguish between perpetual and 
periodic inventory systems.

3. Identify the effects of inventory errors on 
the financial statements.

4. Identify the items that should be 
included as inventory cost.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 8: Valuation of Inventories: A Cost Basis 
Approach



5. Describe and compare the flow 
assumptions used in accounting for 
inventories.

6. Explain the significance and use of a LIFO 
reserve.

7. Explain the effect of LIFO liquidations.

8. Explain the dollar-value LIFO method.

9. Identify the major advantages and 
disadvantages of LIFO.

10. Identify the reasons why a given inventory 
method is selected.

Chapter 8: Valuation of Inventories: A Cost Basis 
Approach



Inventory consists of:

1. Finished goods held for sale in the 
ordinary course of business.

2. Goods held or consumed in the 
production of finished goods.  

Inventory Classification



Merchandising Operations

Cost of goods
sold

$$$

Merchandise 
Inventory

Purchases C/G/Sold

Inventory Cost Flows



Flow of Costs through Manufacturing and 
Merchandising Companies



Inventory control is important for:
1. Ensuring availability of inventory items

2. Preventing excessive accumulation of inventory 
items

The perpetual system maintains a 
continuous record of inventory changes

The periodic system updates inventory 
records only periodically

Inventory Control



• Purchases are debited 
to Inventory account

• Freight-in, Purch. R & 
A and Purch. Disc. are 
recorded in Inventory 
account.

• Debit COGS and credit 
Inventory account for 
each sale.

• Purchases are debited 
to Purchases account.

• Freight-in, Purch. R & 
A and Purch. Disc. are 
recorded in their 
respective accounts.

• COGS is computed only 
periodically:

COGAS

- Ending Inventory

COGS

Perpetual Method Periodic Method

Inventory Systems



Legal title to goods typically 
determines inclusion.
The following goods are included in “seller’s”
inventory:

1. Goods in transit (FOB Destination)

2. Goods on consignment with consignee

3. Goods, sold under buy back agreements

4. Goods, sold with high rates of return

5. Installment sales (if bad debts can not be   
estimated)

Items to be Included in Inventory



Guidelines for Determining Ownership



Error in Effect on Effect on
Ending Income Balance sheet
Inventory Items Items

Under- COGS (over) Inventory (under)
stated Net income (under)     Retained Earn (under)

Over- C/G/sold (under)      Inventory (over)
stated Net income (over)    Retained Earn  (over)

Effect of Inventory Errors



Generally accounted for on a cost basis.

• Product costs are “inventoriable” costs, 
whereas

• Period costs are not inventoriable costs
– Abnormal inventory costs are accounted for 

as period costs

Costs Included in Inventory



The objective is to most clearly reflect 
periodic income.

Cost flow assumptions need not be 
consistent with physical flow of goods.

The cost flow assumptions are:
1 Specific identification

2 Average cost

3 First-in, first-out (FIFO) and     

4 Last-in, first-out (LIFO)

Cost Flow Assumptions



Susieworld reports the following transactions for 
2004:

Date   Purchases Purchase Cost

May 12 100 units $1,000

Aug 14 200 units 2,200

Sep 18 120 units 1,800

420 units $5,000

On December 31, the company had 20 units on hand 
and uses the periodic inventory system.  

What are the cost of goods sold and the cost of 
ending inventory?

Cost Flow Assumptions: Example



Given Data:
Date   Purchases Cost
May 12 100 units $1,000
Aug 14 200 units $2,200
Sep 18 120 units $1,800

420 units $5,000

Steps:

1. Calculate per unit average cost: $5,000/420 = $11.905

2. Apply this per unit average cost to units sold to get COGS:  
400 x $11.905 = $4,762

3. Apply the per unit average cost to units remaining in 
inventory to determine Ending inventory: 20 x $11.91 = $238

Average (Weighted) Method



Given data: 
Date   Purchases                 Cost
May 12 100 units @ $10 $1,000
Aug 14 200 units @ $11 $2,200
Sep 18 120 units @ $15 $1,800

420 $5,000

Cost of goods sold $4,700

20 * $15 = $300Ending inventory$5,000

Cost of goods
available

Cost of goods sold (FIFO)
$1,000  (100 sold)
$2,200  (200 sold)
$1,500 (100 sold; 20 end inv)
$4,700

First-In, First-Out (FIFO) Method



Cost of goods sold $4,800

20 * $10 = $200Ending inventory$5,000

Cost of goods
available

Cost of goods sold (LIFO)
$   800 (80 sold; 20, end inv)
$2,200 (200 sold)
$1,800 (120 sold)
$4,800 

Given data: 
Date   Purchases                Cost
May 12 100 units @ $10 $1,000
Aug 14 200 units @ $11 $2,200
Sep 18 120 units @ $15 $1,800

420 $5,000

Last-In, First-Out (LIFO) Method



• The ending inventory in units is the same in all 
three methods: the cost is different.

• The cost of goods sold and the cost of ending 
inventory are different, but

• The cost of goods available is the same in all 
three methods.

• LIFO would result in the smallest reported net 
income (with rising prices). 

Cost Flow Assumptions: Notes



LIFO Reserve (Allowance) account is 
used, when:

LIFO is used for external reporting and a 
non-LIFO basis is used for internal 
reporting. 

An Allowance to Reduce Inventory to 
LIFO is used to reduce the cost to a 
LIFO basis. 

LIFO Reserve



Jeppo Inc reports the following balances:
Inventory (FIFO basis) on Dec 31, 2004: $50,000
Inventory (LIFO basis) on Dec 31, 2004: $20,000

Adjust the cost of ending inventory to the LIFO basis

Cost of goods sold Dr.  $30,000
Allowance to Reduce Inventory
to LIFO Cr. $30,000

Balance Sheet (Assets):
Inventory (FIFO) $50,000
less: Allowance to Reduce Inventory ($30,000)
Inventory (LIFO) basis $20,000

LIFO Reserve: Example



Under the LIFO approach, a business 
may build up layers of inventory from 
prior periods.

A layer liquidation occurs, when:

• Earlier costs are matched against current 
sales.

• Such matching results in distorted income.

LIFO Layers



Use the specific goods pooled LIFO
approach: a pool is a combination of 
similar items.

• reductions in one item, compensated 
by increases in other items.

Use dollar-value LIFO where:

• changes in pools are determined in 
terms of dollars, not quantities.

Methods to Alleviate Layer Liquidation Problems



Given:

Base layer (Dec 31, 2003): $20,000

Inventory (current prices) 
on Dec 31, 2004:

$26,400

Prices increased 20% during  2004.

Determine dollar value LIFO at Dec 31,
2004

Dollar Value LIFO: Example



Dec 31, 2003 Dec 31, 200

Price increase, 20%

At EOY prices:
$26,400

$26,400 / 1.20At base $:
$22,000

Net increase
at base $:

$22,000 less
$20,000

Restate at
current $:

$2,400
(layer added)

$2,000 * 1.20

$20,000 
plus

$2,400 =
$22,400

Dollar value
LIFO Inventory

Dollar Value LIFO: Example



When the ending inventory (at base year 
prices) is less than the beginning inventory (at 
base year prices):

• the decrease must be subtracted from the 
most recently added layer. 

• Once a layer is eliminated (peeled off), it 
cannot be rebuilt. 

Dollar Value LIFO: Notes



• LIFO matches more recent costs with current 
revenues.

• With increasing prices, LIFO yields the lowest 
taxable income (assuming inventory does not 
decrease).

• With reduced taxes, cash flow is improved.

• Under LIFO, the need to write down inventory 
to market is lower. 

Advantages of LIFO Method



• LIFO does not approximate the physical 
flow of goods except in special situations.

• LIFO yields the lowest net income and 
therefore reduced earnings (when prices 
rise).

• Under LIFO, the ending inventory is 
understated relative to current costs.

• LIFO involuntary liquidation may result in 
income that is detrimental from a tax view. 

• LIFO may cause poor buying habits (because 
of the layer liquidation problem).

Disadvantages of LIFO Method



Chapter 9: Inventories: Additional Valuation Chapter 9: Inventories: Additional Valuation 

IssuesIssues

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield
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Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Explain and apply the lower of cost or 
market rule.

2. Identify when inventories are valued at 
net realizable value.

3. Explain when the relative sales value 
method is used to value inventories.

4. Explain accounting issues related to 
purchase commitments.

After studying this chapter, you should be able 
to:

Chapter 9: Inventories: Additional Valuation Chapter 9: Inventories: Additional Valuation 

IssuesIssues



5. Determine ending inventory by applying 
the gross profit method.

6. Determine ending inventory by applying 
the retail inventory method.

7. Explain how inventory is reported and 
analyzed.

Chapter 9: Inventories: Additional Valuation Chapter 9: Inventories: Additional Valuation 

IssuesIssues



The lower of cost or market is an 
exception to the historical cost 
principle.

When the future potential of the asset 
is less than its original cost:

• Restate asset at market to replace cost.

• The loss must be charged against 
revenues of the period.

Lower of Cost or MarketLower of Cost or Market



The lower of cost or market rule:

1. Market value is the replacement cost.

2. The replacement cost must lie 
between a ceiling amount and a floor 
amount.

3. The ceiling is the net realizable value
(selling price less disposal cost).

4. The floor is net realizable value less a 
normal profit margin.

Lower of Cost or Market: Ceiling and FloorLower of Cost or Market: Ceiling and Floor



Inventory ValuationInventory Valuation——Lower of Cost or MarketLower of Cost or Market



Item Replacement Historical    Ceiling       Floor           Final
Cost Cost Inv $

A $88,000 $80,000 $120,000    $104,000    $80,000

B $88,000 $90,000     $100,000     $70,000      $88,000

C $88,000 $90,000     $100,000    $90,000 $90,000

D $88,000 $90,000     $87,000 $70,000      $87,000

Lower of Cost or Market: Ceiling and Floor: Lower of Cost or Market: Ceiling and Floor: 

ExampleExample



The lower of cost or market may be 
applied:

1. Either directly to each item,

2. To each category, or

3. To the total of the inventory

Whichever method is selected, it 
should be consistently applied!

Lower of Cost or MarketLower of Cost or Market



Under the direct method:
COGS

Inventory

Under the indirect (allowance)
method:

Loss

Allowance (contra-

inventory acct.)

Recording the Decline in Market ValueRecording the Decline in Market Value



• Relative sales values are an appropriate 
basis, when basket purchases are made.

• Basket purchases involve a group of varying 
units.

• The purchase price is paid as a lump sum
amount.

• The lump sum price is allocated to units on 
the basis of their relative sales values.

Valuation Basis: Relative Sales ValuesValuation Basis: Relative Sales Values



Kirby Company buys three different lots (A, B 
and C) in a basket purchase, paying $300,000 
for all three.

The lots were sold as follows:

A ($75,000); B ($150,000) and C ($200,000) 
for a total of $425,000.

What is the cost of A, B and C and the gross 
profit for each lot?

Relative Sales Values: ExampleRelative Sales Values: Example



Lot Sales Allocated Gross 
Value Cost Profit

A $75,000 ($75,000/$425,000)
*  $ 300,000

= $ 52,941 $ 22,059

B $150,000 $105,882 $ 44,118

C $200,000 $ 141,176 $ 58,824

Totals $425,000 $300,000 (rd.)       $125,000 (rd.)

Relative Sales Values: ExampleRelative Sales Values: Example



• Formal, non-cancelable purchase 
contracts are not recognized in the 
accounts but should be disclosed.

• If it is expected that execution of the 
contract will result in a loss, then 
recognition of the loss is appropriate.

Purchase CommitmentsPurchase Commitments



• The gross profit method is used to estimate 
cost of ending inventory.

• This method is used also when an estimate is 
needed due to a casualty loss.

• Assumptions:
1. Beginning inventory + Purchases = Goods to be 

accounted for.

2. Goods not sold are on hand

3. Cost of goods available – Sales (at cost) = Cost of 
ending inventory.

Gross Profit MethodGross Profit Method



Given:

• Beginning inventory : $   50,000

• Net Purchases : $ 125,000

• Sales (net) : $ 112,000

• Gross Profit percentage on sales   40%
(historically derived)

Estimate the ending inventory!

Gross Profit Method: ExampleGross Profit Method: Example



• Sales      $112,000  (given)  1st

• - COGS $ 67,200 (plug)   3rd

• Gross Profit       $ 44,800  (given $112,000 
x 40%)  2nd

• COGAS $175,000  (given)  4th

• - COGS $67,200 (computed above) 5th

• Ending Inv. $107,800  (result) 6th

Gross Profit Method: ExampleGross Profit Method: Example



Gross profit rates may be stated 
either as:

1. Percent-of-Sales, or
2. Percent-of-Cost

Gross profit rates are typically based on 
historical data.

The gross profit method is not normally 
acceptable for financial reporting.

Notes on Gross Profit MethodNotes on Gross Profit Method



Is appropriate for retail concerns 

1. with high volume sales and

2. different types of merchandise.

The method assumes an observable 
pattern between cost and prices. 

The steps are:

1. determine ending inventory at retail price

2. convert this amount to a cost basis using a 
cost-to-retail ratio

Retail Inventory MethodRetail Inventory Method



Given for the year 2002:

at cost at retail

Beginning inventory       $2,000  $3,000

Purchases (Net) $10,000           $15,000

Sales (Net) $12,000

What is ending inventory, at retail and at cost?

Retail Inventory Method: ExampleRetail Inventory Method: Example



at cost at retail

• Beginning inventory        $2,000    $3,000

• Purchases (Net) $10,000   $15,000

• Goods available for sale         $12,000   $18,000

• less: Sales (Net) ($12,000)

• Ending inventory (at retail) $6,000

• Times: cost to retail ratio x 2/3

• Ending inventory at cost $4,000

Retail Inventory Method: ExampleRetail Inventory Method: Example



Given:

at cost      at retail

• Goods available   $20,500     $36,000

• Markups $  3,000

• Markup cancellations $  1,000

• Markdowns $  2,500

• Markdown cancellations $  2,000

What is the cost-to-retail ratio using the 
conventional method?

Markups, Markdowns and Cancellations: Markups, Markdowns and Cancellations: 

ExampleExample



at cost   at retail

• Goods available $20,500  $36,000

• Markups $  3,000

• Markup cancellations ($ 1,000)

• Goods available (adj.)  $20,500 $ 38,000

• Cost-to-retail ratio ($20,500/ $38,000) = 53.9%

• Ignore markdowns and markdown 
cancellations

Markups, Markdowns and Cancellations: Markups, Markdowns and Cancellations: 

ExampleExample
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1. Describe the major characteristics of property, 
plant, and equipment.

2. Identify the costs included in the initial valuation 
of land, buildings, and equipment.

3. Describe the accounting problems associated with 
self-constructed assets.

4. Describe the accounting problems associated with 
interest capitalization.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of 

Property, Plant, and EquipmentProperty, Plant, and Equipment



5. Understand accounting issues related to 
acquiring and valuing plant assets.

6. Describe the accounting treatment for costs 
subsequent to acquisition.

7. Describe the accounting treatment for 
disposal of property, plant, and equipment.

Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of 

Property, Plant, and EquipmentProperty, Plant, and Equipment



PP&E include:

land, building, structures and equipment

machinery, furniture and tools

They are used in operations and not held for 
resale

They are long term and are subject to 
depreciation (except land)

They are tangible

Property, Plant, and Equipment (PP&E)Property, Plant, and Equipment (PP&E)



PPE is initially valued at historical cost. 

Historical cost includes:

• the asset’s cash or cash equivalent 
price, and

• the cost of readying the asset for use

Acquisition CostAcquisition Cost



Land costs include:

• purchase price

• closing costs, attorney fees, and recording fees

• costs of getting land ready for use (clearing, etc.)

• special assessments for local improvements

• assumption of liens or encumbrances, and

• additional improvements with an indefinite life

Sale of salvaged materials reduces cost

Cost of LandCost of Land



Improvements with limited lives are 
recorded as Land Improvements (and not as 
Land)

Building cost includes:
• costs of materials and labor, and overhead

• professional fees and building permits

Cost of equipment includes:
• purchase price

• freight and handling charges

• costs of special foundation, installation, and initial 
testing.

Land Improvements, Building and EquipmentLand Improvements, Building and Equipment



These are assets constructed by the 
business for use in operations.

The cost of self-constructed assets
includes:

• cost of direct materials,

• cost of direct labor,

• variable manufacturing overhead, 

• a pro rata portion of the fixed overhead, 
and

• interest costs incurred during construction 
(with modification).

SelfSelf--Constructed AssetsConstructed Assets



Three questions must be answered:

1. Which assets are qualifying assets?

2. What is the capitalization period?

3. What is the amount of interest to 
be capitalized?

Interest Capitalization: FactorsInterest Capitalization: Factors



• They must require a period of time to 
make them ready for use.

• There are two types of qualifying 
assets:

1. Assets under construction for use in 
operations, and

2. Discrete assets intended for sale or 
lease.

Interest Capitalization: Qualifying AssetsInterest Capitalization: Qualifying Assets



Capitalization period begins when:
1. expenditures for the asset have been 

made, and

2. activities for readying the asset are in 
progress, and

3. interest costs are being incurred

Capitalization period ends when:
1. The asset is substantially complete and 

ready for its intended use.

Interest Capitalization: Capitalization PeriodInterest Capitalization: Capitalization Period



Capitalize the lesser of:

1. actual interest costs

2. avoidable interest

Avoidable interest is the amount 
that could have been avoided if 
expenditures for the asset had not 
been made 

Interest Capitalization: Amount to be CapitalizedInterest Capitalization: Amount to be Capitalized



Determine
weighted-average

accumulated
expenditures

1

Avoidable interest

Appropriate
interest rate(s)

2

Capitalize, lesser of 
avoidable and
actual interest

Multiply
by

Computing Avoidable Interest: StepsComputing Avoidable Interest: Steps



Amber makes the following two payments in 2004: 
Jan 31:  $24,000 July 31:  $18,000

Capitalization period ran from Jan 31 – Dec 31.
What is the WAAE?

Jan 31: $24,000 * (11/12) $22,000
July 31: $18,000 * (5/12) $  7,500

WAAE $29,500

Determining WeightedDetermining Weighted--Average Accumulated Average Accumulated 

Expenditures (WAAE): ExampleExpenditures (WAAE): Example



Amber (in the previous example) had the 
following debt outstanding throughout 2004:

1. 10%, 2-year note specifically for the 
project: $25,000

2. 8%, 5-year note (other debt): $20,000

What is the appropriate interest rate(s) and 
the avoidable interest?

Determining the Appropriate Interest Rate: Determining the Appropriate Interest Rate: 

ExampleExample



$2,500
avoidableWeighted-

average
accumulated
expenditures:

$29,500

1
Up to 

specific loan,
$25,000 at

10%

2

Excess WAAE 
($29,500 less

$25,000 = $4,500)
at
8%

3

+

$2,860

$360
avoidable

The Appropriate Interest Rate and Avoidable The Appropriate Interest Rate and Avoidable 

Interest: ExampleInterest: Example



Avoidable interest: $2,860

Actual interest:

• $25,000 @ 10%       =  $2,500

• $20,000 @ 8% =  $1,600
$4,100 

• Capitalize avoidable interest of $2,860 (the 
lesser of avoidable and actual interest).

• Expense $1,240 ($4,100 less $2,860).

Comparing Actual and Avoidable Interest: Comparing Actual and Avoidable Interest: 

ExampleExample



• A cash discount, whether taken or not, 
reduces purchase price of asset.

• Assets, purchased through long term credit, 
are recorded at the present value of the 
consideration exchanged.

• Cost of assets, acquired in a basket purchase, 
is allocated to assets on the basis of their 
relative fair market values. 

• If assets are acquired in exchange for stock 
then the market valuation of the stock is the 
basis for valuation.

Valuation IssuesValuation Issues



The basic rule is that the exchange must be 
based on:

1. the fair value of the asset given up, or

2. the fair value of the asset received 
whichever is clearly more evident.

The rules for gain/loss recognition depend 
upon whether the non-monetary exchange 
has commercial substance.

Exchange of NonExchange of Non--Monetary AssetsMonetary Assets



Exchange of NonExchange of Non--Monetary AssetsMonetary Assets

• If the future cash flows change as a result of 
the non-monetary exchange, then the 
transaction has commercial substance.
– Determine whether the risk, timing, and amount of 

cash flows arising for the asset received is 
different from the cash flows associated with the 
outbound asset, or

– Evaluate whether cash flows are affected with the 
exchange versus without the exchange

Exchange of NonExchange of Non--Monetary AssetsMonetary Assets



Types of Accounting Accounting for 
Exchange for Asset gain/loss

Received

Has commercial   Recognize at Recognize
substance fair value gain or loss

Lacks commercial   Book value of No gain or loss
substance asset(s) given up recognized

Accounting for ExchangesAccounting for Exchanges



Plant assets may be:

• retired voluntarily, or

• disposed of by sale, exchange, involuntary 
conversion

Depreciation is recorded up to the date of 
disposal before determining gain or loss.

Gains or losses from involuntary conversion
are often reported as extraordinary items.

Dispositions of PP&EDispositions of PP&E



If cost incurred increase future benefits, 
capitalize costs.

If costs maintain a given level of services, 
expense costs.

Costs incurred after acquisition can be 
classified as:

• additions

• improvements and replacements

• rearrangements and reinstallation 

• repairs

Costs Subsequent to AcquisitionCosts Subsequent to Acquisition



Capitalize costs, if

Improvements Replacementsor

They increase  future service potential

Substitution of
a better asset
for present 

asset

Substitution of
a similar asset
for present 

asset

Improvements and ReplacementsImprovements and Replacements



• Carrying value of 
asset is known

• Carrying value of 
the asset is unknown

• Substitution approach

• Capitalize the new 
asset (without 
removing the old 
asset from the pool), 
or

• Debit accumulated 
depreciation (when 
expenditures extend 
useful life of asset) 

Capitalization ApproachesCapitalization Approaches
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1. Describe the major characteristics of property, 
plant, and equipment.

2. Identify the costs included in the initial valuation 
of land, buildings, and equipment.

3. Describe the accounting problems associated with 
self-constructed assets.

4. Describe the accounting problems associated with 
interest capitalization.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of 

Property, Plant, and EquipmentProperty, Plant, and Equipment



5. Understand accounting issues related to 
acquiring and valuing plant assets.

6. Describe the accounting treatment for costs 
subsequent to acquisition.

7. Describe the accounting treatment for 
disposal of property, plant, and equipment.

Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of Chapter 10: Acquisition and Disposition of 

Property, Plant, and EquipmentProperty, Plant, and Equipment



PP&E include:

land, building, structures and equipment

machinery, furniture and tools

They are used in operations and not held for 
resale

They are long term and are subject to 
depreciation (except land)

They are tangible

Property, Plant, and Equipment (PP&E)Property, Plant, and Equipment (PP&E)



PPE is initially valued at historical cost. 

Historical cost includes:

• the asset’s cash or cash equivalent 
price, and

• the cost of readying the asset for use

Acquisition CostAcquisition Cost



Land costs include:

• purchase price

• closing costs, attorney fees, and recording fees

• costs of getting land ready for use (clearing, etc.)

• special assessments for local improvements

• assumption of liens or encumbrances, and

• additional improvements with an indefinite life

Sale of salvaged materials reduces cost

Cost of LandCost of Land



Improvements with limited lives are 
recorded as Land Improvements (and not as 
Land)

Building cost includes:
• costs of materials and labor, and overhead

• professional fees and building permits

Cost of equipment includes:
• purchase price

• freight and handling charges

• costs of special foundation, installation, and initial 
testing.

Land Improvements, Building and EquipmentLand Improvements, Building and Equipment



These are assets constructed by the 
business for use in operations.

The cost of self-constructed assets
includes:

• cost of direct materials,

• cost of direct labor,

• variable manufacturing overhead, 

• a pro rata portion of the fixed overhead, 
and

• interest costs incurred during construction 
(with modification).

SelfSelf--Constructed AssetsConstructed Assets



Three questions must be answered:

1. Which assets are qualifying assets?

2. What is the capitalization period?

3. What is the amount of interest to 
be capitalized?

Interest Capitalization: FactorsInterest Capitalization: Factors



• They must require a period of time to 
make them ready for use.

• There are two types of qualifying 
assets:

1. Assets under construction for use in 
operations, and

2. Discrete assets intended for sale or 
lease.

Interest Capitalization: Qualifying AssetsInterest Capitalization: Qualifying Assets



Capitalization period begins when:
1. expenditures for the asset have been 

made, and

2. activities for readying the asset are in 
progress, and

3. interest costs are being incurred

Capitalization period ends when:
1. The asset is substantially complete and 

ready for its intended use.

Interest Capitalization: Capitalization PeriodInterest Capitalization: Capitalization Period



Capitalize the lesser of:

1. actual interest costs

2. avoidable interest

Avoidable interest is the amount 
that could have been avoided if 
expenditures for the asset had not 
been made 

Interest Capitalization: Amount to be CapitalizedInterest Capitalization: Amount to be Capitalized



Determine
weighted-average

accumulated
expenditures

1

Avoidable interest

Appropriate
interest rate(s)

2

Capitalize, lesser of 
avoidable and
actual interest

Multiply
by

Computing Avoidable Interest: StepsComputing Avoidable Interest: Steps



Amber makes the following two payments in 2004: 
Jan 31:  $24,000 July 31:  $18,000

Capitalization period ran from Jan 31 – Dec 31.
What is the WAAE?

Jan 31: $24,000 * (11/12) $22,000
July 31: $18,000 * (5/12) $  7,500

WAAE $29,500

Determining WeightedDetermining Weighted--Average Accumulated Average Accumulated 

Expenditures (WAAE): ExampleExpenditures (WAAE): Example



Amber (in the previous example) had the 
following debt outstanding throughout 2004:

1. 10%, 2-year note specifically for the 
project: $25,000

2. 8%, 5-year note (other debt): $20,000

What is the appropriate interest rate(s) and 
the avoidable interest?

Determining the Appropriate Interest Rate: Determining the Appropriate Interest Rate: 

ExampleExample



$2,500
avoidableWeighted-

average
accumulated
expenditures:

$29,500

1
Up to 

specific loan,
$25,000 at

10%

2

Excess WAAE 
($29,500 less

$25,000 = $4,500)
at
8%

3

+

$2,860

$360
avoidable

The Appropriate Interest Rate and Avoidable The Appropriate Interest Rate and Avoidable 

Interest: ExampleInterest: Example



Avoidable interest: $2,860

Actual interest:

• $25,000 @ 10%       =  $2,500

• $20,000 @ 8% =  $1,600
$4,100 

• Capitalize avoidable interest of $2,860 (the 
lesser of avoidable and actual interest).

• Expense $1,240 ($4,100 less $2,860).

Comparing Actual and Avoidable Interest: Comparing Actual and Avoidable Interest: 

ExampleExample



• A cash discount, whether taken or not, 
reduces purchase price of asset.

• Assets, purchased through long term credit, 
are recorded at the present value of the 
consideration exchanged.

• Cost of assets, acquired in a basket purchase, 
is allocated to assets on the basis of their 
relative fair market values. 

• If assets are acquired in exchange for stock 
then the market valuation of the stock is the 
basis for valuation.

Valuation IssuesValuation Issues



The basic rule is that the exchange must be 
based on:

1. the fair value of the asset given up, or

2. the fair value of the asset received 
whichever is clearly more evident.

The rules for gain/loss recognition depend 
upon whether the non-monetary exchange 
has commercial substance.

Exchange of NonExchange of Non--Monetary AssetsMonetary Assets



Exchange of NonExchange of Non--Monetary AssetsMonetary Assets

• If the future cash flows change as a result of 
the non-monetary exchange, then the 
transaction has commercial substance.
– Determine whether the risk, timing, and amount of 

cash flows arising for the asset received is 
different from the cash flows associated with the 
outbound asset, or

– Evaluate whether cash flows are affected with the 
exchange versus without the exchange

Exchange of NonExchange of Non--Monetary AssetsMonetary Assets



Types of Accounting Accounting for 
Exchange for Asset gain/loss

Received

Has commercial   Recognize at Recognize
substance fair value gain or loss

Lacks commercial   Book value of No gain or loss
substance asset(s) given up recognized

Accounting for ExchangesAccounting for Exchanges



Plant assets may be:

• retired voluntarily, or

• disposed of by sale, exchange, involuntary 
conversion

Depreciation is recorded up to the date of 
disposal before determining gain or loss.

Gains or losses from involuntary conversion
are often reported as extraordinary items.

Dispositions of PP&EDispositions of PP&E



If cost incurred increase future benefits, 
capitalize costs.

If costs maintain a given level of services, 
expense costs.

Costs incurred after acquisition can be 
classified as:

• additions

• improvements and replacements

• rearrangements and reinstallation 

• repairs

Costs Subsequent to AcquisitionCosts Subsequent to Acquisition



Capitalize costs, if

Improvements Replacementsor

They increase  future service potential

Substitution of
a better asset
for present 

asset

Substitution of
a similar asset
for present 

asset

Improvements and ReplacementsImprovements and Replacements



• Carrying value of 
asset is known

• Carrying value of 
the asset is unknown

• Substitution approach

• Capitalize the new 
asset (without 
removing the old 
asset from the pool), 
or

• Debit accumulated 
depreciation (when 
expenditures extend 
useful life of asset) 

Capitalization ApproachesCapitalization Approaches
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• Describe the characteristics of intangible assets.

• Identify the costs included in the initial valuation of 
intangible assets.

• Explain the procedure for amortizing intangible 
assets.

• Identify the types of intangible assets.

• Explain the conceptual issues related to goodwill.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 12Chapter 12: : Intangible AssetsIntangible Assets



• Describe the accounting procedures for 
recording goodwill.

• Explain the accounting issues related to 
intangible asset impairments.

• Identify the conceptual issues related to research 
and development costs.

• Describe the accounting procedures for research 
and development costs and for other similar 
costs.

• Indicate the presentation of intangible assets and 
related items.

Chapter 12Chapter 12: : Intangible AssetsIntangible Assets



• They lack physical existence

• They represent entity’s rights and privileges

• They are not financial instruments

• They are long term in nature

IntangiblesIntangibles: : CharacteristicsCharacteristics



Tangible Assets As a Percent of All Tangible Assets As a Percent of All 
AssetsAssets



Intangibles are either grouped or separately 
identified based on the following factors:

–Are the assets developed internally, or 
acquired singly or in groups?

–Is the expected benefit from the asset 
limited or indefinite?

–Are the rights transferable or are they a 
substantial part of the business?   

Classification of IntangiblesClassification of Intangibles



Intangibles

Purchased
Internally-
Created

Specifically
Identifiable

Goodwill-
type assets

Specifically
Identifiable

Goodwill-
type assets

Capitalize Capitalize
Expense,
except 
direct
costs 

Expense

Valuation of Intangible AssetsValuation of Intangible Assets



• Intangibles are written off over their useful 
lives, where the assets have determinable
useful lives.

• Where the intangibles have indefinite useful 
lives, they are not amortized.

• Acquired intangibles should not be written 
off at acquisition.

Amortization of Intangible AssetsAmortization of Intangible Assets



• Marketing-related (i.e., trademark, trade name).

• Customer-related (i.e., customer lists, customer 
relationships).

• Artistic-related (i.e., copyrights).

• Contract-related (i.e., franchise, licenses or 
permits).

• Goodwill.

• Technology-related (i.e., product patent, process 
patent).

Specific IntangiblesSpecific Intangibles: : TypesTypes



• Trademarks and trade names are renewable 
indefinitely by the original user in periods 
of 10 years each.

• Costs of acquired trademarks or trade 
names are capitalized.

• If trademarks or trade names are developed 
by the a business, all direct costs (except 
R&D costs) are capitalized.

MarketingMarketing--Related IntangiblesRelated Intangibles: : 
Trademarks and Trade NamesTrademarks and Trade Names



• Examples include:

– customer lists 

– order or production backlogs

– customer relationships

• Amortized over useful life.

CustomerCustomer--Related IntangiblesRelated Intangibles



• Copyrights are granted for life of the creator plus 
70 years.

• Copyrights can be sold or assigned, but cannot be 
renewed.

• Copyrights are amortized over their useful life.

• Costs of acquiring copyrights are capitalized.

• Research and development costs involved are 
expensed as incurred.

ArtisticArtistic--Related IntangiblesRelated Intangibles: : 
CopyrightsCopyrights



• A franchise is a contractual agreement under 
which:

– The franchisor grants the franchisee:

• the right to sell certain products or services,

• the right to use certain trademarks or trade 
names, or

• the right to perform certain functions, within 
a certain geographical area.

ContractContract--Related IntangiblesRelated Intangibles: : 
Franchises and LicensesFranchises and Licenses



• A franchise may be for a limited time, for an 
indefinite time period, or perpetual.

• The cost of a franchise (for a limited time) is 
amortized over the franchise term.

• A franchise (for an unlimited time) is carried at 
cost and not amortized.

• Annual payments for a franchise are expensed.

Franchises and LicensesFranchises and Licenses



• A patent gives an exclusive right to the holder for 
20 years.

• Costs of purchasing patents are capitalized.

• Costs to research and develop patents are 
expensed as incurred.

• Patents are amortized over the shorter of the legal 
life (20 years) or their useful lives.

• Legal fees incurred to successfully defend patents 
are capitalized.

TechnologyTechnology--Related IntangiblesRelated Intangibles: : 
Patents Patents ((Product Patents and Product Patents and 

Process PatentsProcess Patents))



• Goodwill is the most intangible of all assets.

• Goodwill can be sold only with the business.

• Goodwill is the excess of:

– the cost (purchase price) over

– the amounts (price) assigned to tangible and 
intangible net assets.

• Goodwill has an indefinite life and should not be 
amortized.

GoodwillGoodwill



• Internally created goodwill is not capitalized.

• Purchased goodwill is recognized only when an 
entire business is purchased.

• The initial valuation of goodwill is:

the excess of the purchase price over the fair value 
of the net assets acquired.

• It is sometimes referred to as a master valuation 
account (or a plug figure).

GoodwillGoodwill



• Acquired goodwill has an indefinite life 
and should not be amortized but is subject 
to impairment.

• Impairment test should be performed at 
least annually.

• If applicable, loss recorded.

Goodwill WriteGoodwill Write--OffOff



• Fair value of net assets acquired is higher 
than purchase price of assets.

• Resulting credit is negative goodwill 
(badwill).

• FASB requires that any remaining excess 
be recognized as an extraordinary gain.

Negative GoodwillNegative Goodwill



An impairment occurs when:

– the carrying amount of an asset is not 
recoverable, and

– a write-off of the impaired amount is 
needed 

To determine the amount of impairment, a 
recoverability test is used.

IntangiblesIntangibles: : ImpairmentsImpairments



Type of Asset

• Property, Plant & 
Equipment

• Limited Live 
Intangible

• Indefinite-life 
intangible, other 
than goodwill

• Goodwill

Impairment Tests
• Recoverability test,then fair 

value test

• Recoverability test, then fair 
value test

• Fair value test

• Fair value test on reporting 
unit, then fair value test on 
implied goodwill

Impairment TestsImpairment Tests



Impairment?

Sum of expected 
future net cash flows
from use and disposal 

of asset is less than
the carrying amount

Sum of expected 
future net cash flows
from use and disposal 

of asset is  
equal to or more than 
the carrying amount

Impairment has 
occurred

No impairment

ImpairmentsImpairments: : The Recoverability The Recoverability 
TestTest



Impairment has occurred Loss =
Carrying amount

less
Fair value of asset

Does an active market
exist for the asset?

Determine 
impairment loss

Yes 

No 

Loss =
Carrying amount

less
present value of

expected net cash
flowsUse company’s market

rate of interest

ImpairmentsImpairments: : Measuring LossMeasuring Loss



Impairment has occurred

1. Loss = Carrying value
less Fair value

2. Depreciate new cost basis
3. Restoration of impairment

loss is NOT permitted

1. Loss = Carrying value 
less Fair Value less 
cost of disposal  

2. No depreciation is taken
3. Restoration of impairment

loss is permitted

Assets are held

for use
Assets are held

for sale

ImpairmentImpairment: : AccountingAccounting



• Compares fair value of intangible asset 
with assets' carrying amount.

• If fair value less than carrying amount, 
impairment recognized.

Impairment TestImpairment Test: : Fair Value TestFair Value Test



• Assets held for use: impairment loss may 
not be restored.

• Assets held for disposal can be written up or 
down, as long as write-up is never greater 
than carrying amount before impairment.

• Losses or gains reported as “income from 
continuing operations.”

Restoration of ImpairmentRestoration of Impairment



• Contra accounts are not normally shown.

• On the balance sheet, all intangible assets should be 
reported as a separate item.

• On income statement, amortization expense and 
impairment losses should be presented as part of 
income from continuing operations.

• Unless goodwill impairment loss is associated with 
discontinued operations, it should also be reported 
as part of continuing operations.

Presentation of IntangiblesPresentation of Intangibles



Research activities involve:

– planned search or

– critical investigation aimed at discovery of new 
knowledge

Example:

Laboratory research aimed at discovery 
of new knowledge

Research and Development CostsResearch and Development Costs



MerckMerck’’s R&D Disclosures R&D Disclosure



• R & D costs involve searching for new 
products and processes

• R & D costs are expensed unless the costs 
have alternative future uses: (examples)

– Lab costs aimed at new knowledge

– Conceptual formulation of possible product

Research and Development CostsResearch and Development Costs



Disclosure is required in the financial 
statements of the total R & D costs charged 
to expense each period for which an 
income statement is presented.

Presentation of R&D CostsPresentation of R&D Costs
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1. Describe the nature, type, and valuation of 
current liabilities.

2. Explain the classification issues of short-term 
debt expected to be refinanced.

3. Identify types of employee-related liabilities.

4. Identify the criteria used to account for and 
disclose gain and loss contingencies.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 13: Current Liabilities and ContingenciesChapter 13: Current Liabilities and Contingencies



5. Explain the accounting for different types of 
loss contingencies.

6. Indicate how current liabilities and 
contingencies are presented and analyzed.

Chapter 13: Current Liabilities and ContingenciesChapter 13: Current Liabilities and Contingencies



What is a liability?

Probable future sacrifices of economic 
benefits arising from present obligations to 
transfer assets or to provide services in the 
future as a result of past transactions or 
events.

Liabilities in GeneralLiabilities in General



Current liabilities are:

• Obligations whose liquidation is reasonably 
expected to require the use of current assets 
or the creation of other current liabilities.

Current LiabilitiesCurrent Liabilities



Accounts payable

Notes payable

Current maturities of 
long-term debt

Short-term obligations 
expected to be refinanced

Dividends

Returnable deposits

Unearned revenues

Sales taxes payable

Income taxes payable

Employee-related 
liabilities

Typical current liabilities:

Current LiabilitiesCurrent Liabilities



Accounts payable, also referred to as 
trade accounts payable are:

1. Balances owed for goods, supplies, or 
services purchased on open account.

2. Valuation is based on invoice amount.

3. Recorded on either net or gross basis.

Accounts PayableAccounts Payable



• Notes payable may be interest-bearing or non-
interest-bearing.

• For non-interest-bearing notes, the difference 
between the present value of the note and the face 
value of the note represents the discount on the 
note payable.

• The discount is the interest expense allocated over 
the term of the note.

Notes PayableNotes Payable



The portion of long-term debt maturing 
within the next fiscal year is reported as a 
current liability.

Long-term debts should not be reported as 
current liabilities if:

1. they are retired by assets not classified as current 
assets

2. they are refinanced by new issues of debt

3. they are converted into capital stock.

Current Maturities of LongCurrent Maturities of Long--Term DebtTerm Debt



Short-term debt must be excluded from current 
liabilities if:

1. it is to be refinanced on a long-term basis, and

2. the entity demonstrates the ability to complete the 
refinancing.

The entity has the ability to refinance if:

1. the debt is actually refinanced before issue of the 
financial statements, or

2. the entity enters into a refinancing agreement. 

ShortShort--Term Obligations Expected to be RefinancedTerm Obligations Expected to be Refinanced



A cash dividend payable is:
1. Payable to shareholders.

2. Declared by the board of directors.

3. Stock dividends are NOT liabilities.

Returnable deposits:
1. May have been received from customers or employees.

2. Usually retained to guarantee performance.

3. May be current or noncurrent liabilities.

Dividends Payable and Returnable DepositsDividends Payable and Returnable Deposits



Unearned revenues represent receipts before
goods or services are delivered.

• Upon receipt:

Cash

Unearned Revenues

• Upon delivery:

Unearned Revenues

Revenues

Unearned RevenuesUnearned Revenues



Sales taxes payable are:
• Payable to governmental agencies.

• May or may not be separately recognized at time 
of sale.

Income taxes payable are:
• Payable to governmental agencies.

• Based on taxable income.

• Not levied on partnerships or sole-
proprietorships.

Sales Taxes and Income Taxes PayableSales Taxes and Income Taxes Payable



Employee-related liabilities are the 
following:

• Salaries or wages owed to employees at end of the 
accounting period

• Payroll deductions

• Compensated absences

• Bonuses

EmployeeEmployee--Related LiabilitiesRelated Liabilities



Payroll deductions are taxes and 
miscellaneous deductions and include:

Income tax w/h

FICA taxes (1/2)

Union dues

Other (e.g., 
medical insurance)

Employee Pays Employer Pays

FICA taxes (1/2)

Fed. Unemployment

State 
Unemployment

Other (e.g., medical 
insurance)

Payroll DeductionsPayroll Deductions



Compensated absences are absences from 
employment for which employees are paid

A liability for such absences must be accrued if:

1. Relates to services already rendered by employees,

2. Relates to employee’s vested or accumulated rights 
of employee,

3. Payment of the compensation is probable, and the 
amount can be reasonably estimated.   

The liability is recognized in the year earned by 
employees

EmployeeEmployee--Compensated AbsencesCompensated Absences



• Bonuses may be given in addition to 
regular salaries to all or select group of 
employees

• Typically tied to performance measures 
(e.g., net income)

• In most cases are current liabilities

Bonus AgreementsBonus Agreements



An existing condition, situation, or set of 
circumstances involving uncertainty as to 
possible gain (gain contingency) or loss 
(loss contingency) that will ultimately be 
resolved when one or more future events 
occur or when such event or events fail to 
occur.

Contingency: DefinedContingency: Defined



Gain contingencies are claims or rights to 
receive assets, which may become valid 
eventually.

Examples are:

• Pending litigation whose probable     outcome 
is favorable

• Possible tax refunds in tax disputes

Gain contingencies are not accrued!

Gain ContingenciesGain Contingencies



Loss contingencies involve situations of 
possible loss that are dependent on some 
future event(s).

The likelihood of occurrence of the event 
may be:

1. Remote (slight)

2. Reasonably possible (more than remote 
but less than likely)

3. Probable (likely) 

Loss Contingencies: GeneralLoss Contingencies: General



Estimated losses from loss contingencies
are accrued as liabilities if:

1. It is probable that a liability has been incurred, 
and

2. The amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.

The interpretation of these terms is often 
based on lawyers’ opinions.      

Loss Contingencies: AccrualLoss Contingencies: Accrual



To determine whether a liability should be 
recorded, evaluate:

1. The time period in which the underlying cause of action 
occurred

2. The probability of an unfavorable outcome

3. The ability to make a reasonable estimate of loss

To determine the probability of outcome, 
evaluate:

1. Nature of litigation and progress of case

2. Opinion of legal counsel

3. Response by management

Litigation, Claims and AssessmentsLitigation, Claims and Assessments



A warranty is a promise (future cost) made by a 
seller to a buyer to make good on a deficiency. 

Under the cash basis method, warranty costs are 
charged to the period in which the costs are paid.

Under the accrual basis method:

1. warranty costs (for warranties sold with the product) 
are estimated and matched with revenue.

2. extended warranty revenues are deferred           and 
recognized over the life of the warranty contract.

Guarantee and Warranty CostsGuarantee and Warranty Costs



Estimated warranty costs:

3% of 10,000 units at $15 each = $4,500

Adjusting journal entry:

Warranty Expense $4,500

Estimated Liability (warranties) $4,500

Entry in 2004: (170 units repaired at $15 each)

Estimated Liability (warranties) $ 2,550

Parts Inventory $   850

Wages Payable $1,700

ManufacturersManufacturers’’ Warranties: ExampleWarranties: Example



Two ratios often used are:

Current =  Current assets    

Current liabilities

Acid-test =  Cash + Mkt. Sec + Net Recbls.

Current liabilities

Both are measurements of a firm’s liquidity.

Analysis of Current LiabilitiesAnalysis of Current Liabilities



Chapter 14: Long Term LiabilitiesChapter 14: Long Term Liabilities

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield

Prepared by
Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Describe the format procedures associated with 
issuing long-term debt.

2. Identify various types of bond issues.

3. Describe the accounting valuation for bonds at 
date of issuance.

4. Apply the methods of bond discount and 
premium amortization.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 14: Long Term LiabilitiesChapter 14: Long Term Liabilities



5. Describe the accounting procedures for the 
extinguishment of debt.

6. Explain the accounting procedures for long-
term notes payable.

7. Explain the reporting of off-balance sheet 
financing arrangements.

8. Indicate how long-term debt is presented and 
analyzed.

Chapter 14: Long Term LiabilitiesChapter 14: Long Term Liabilities



Long-term debt consists of probable future 
sacrifices.

It has various covenants or restrictions for 
the protection of both lenders and 
borrowers.

The indenture agreement incorporates the 
terms of the issue and restrictions.  

Long Term Debt: GeneralLong Term Debt: General



Bonds are the most common type of long-
term debt.

They are usually issued in denominations of 
$1,000.

A bond indenture is a promise (by the lender 
to the borrower) to pay:
1. a sum of money at the designated date, and

2. periodic interest at a stipulated rate on the face 
value.

Issuing BondsIssuing Bonds



Secured and unsecured bonds

Term or serial bonds

Callable bonds

Convertible bonds

Bearer bonds

Deep discount

Commodity-backed

Selected Types of BondsSelected Types of Bonds



Issuer of BondsIssuer of Bonds BondholdersBondholders
lend cash

1. Bond Certificate

2. Payment Periodic Interest

3. Payment of Face Value (maturity)

Bond Issues: Parties to the ContractBond Issues: Parties to the Contract



The price of a bond issue is determined 
by:

• the present value of the interest payments, and

• the present value of the face value,

• both discounted at the market (effective) rate of 
interest at date of issue.

Interest payments by borrower are 
calculated as:
Face value of bond issue  x  Stated (face) rate of 
interest

Valuation of Bonds: Determining Bond PricesValuation of Bonds: Determining Bond Prices



Given:

• Face value of bond issue:     $100,000

• Term of issue: 5 years

• Stated interest rate: 9% per year, payable 
annually end of the year

• Market rate of interest: 11%

What is the issue price of the bonds?

Determining Bond Prices: ExampleDetermining Bond Prices: Example



Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

$9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 Interest

$100,000
face value

Redemption at maturity ==>

Interest = $100,000 x  9% per year stated rate

Determining Bond Prices: Example: Cash FlowsDetermining Bond Prices: Example: Cash Flows



Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

$9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 Interest

Discount at market rate, 11%
$9,000 x  3.69590

$  33,263

$100,000
Discount at market rate, 11%

$100,000 x  0.59345$ 59,345

plus

=$92,608 is the issue price  

Determining Bond Prices: Example: Present Value of Determining Bond Prices: Example: Present Value of 

Cash FlowsCash Flows



Relationship Relationship 
between between
Stated rate Issue Price
and market rate and face value

S.R. = Mkt Rate Issue Price = F.V.

S.R.  <  Mkt Rate Issue Price < F.V.

S.R. >  Mkt Rate Issue Price > F.V.

Bond Issue Pricing: ConceptBond Issue Pricing: Concept



A discount is amortized either by the straight line 
method or the effective interest method.

The effective method is preferred GAAP.

Interest expense is recognized as follows:

Cash paid for interest: $XXX

Add: Discount amortized              $XXX

during period:

Interest expense recognized:   $XXX

Discount on Bonds PayableDiscount on Bonds Payable



A premium is amortized either by the 
straight line method or the effective interest 
method.

Interest expense is recognized as follows:

Cash paid for interest: $XXX

Less: Premium amortized                                
during period: $XXX

Interest expense recognized: $XXX

Premium on Bonds PayablePremium on Bonds Payable



Under this method of amortization an equal
amount of interest expense and 
discount/premium amortization is recognized 
each period.

The amount to amortize each period = 

Total Discount/Premium

Total Number of Periods

StraightStraight--Line MethodLine Method



This method results in a different interest 
expense and amount of discount/premium 
amortized each period.

Bond interest expense =

Beginning Period’s Carrying Value x Effective Rate 
at Time of Issuance

Discount/premium amortized =
The difference between interest expense and interest 
to be paid (plug)

EffectiveEffective--Interest MethodInterest Method



Bond Discount and Premium Amortization Bond Discount and Premium Amortization 

ComputationComputation



Discount on bonds payable is a contra 
liability account and is shown as:

Bonds Payable (face value) :      $ XXX

less: Unamortized Discount : ($  XX)

Bonds Payable (carrying value): $ XXX

Classification of Discount on Bonds PayableClassification of Discount on Bonds Payable



Premium on bonds payable is an adjunct 
account and is shown as:

Bonds Payable (face value) :      $ XXX

add: Unamortized Premium :     $ XX

Bonds Payable (carrying value): $ XXX

Classification of Premium on Bonds PayableClassification of Premium on Bonds Payable



• The straight-line method allocates the same 
amount of discount (or premium) to each 
interest period.

• The effective-interest method allocates the 
discount or premium in increasing amounts 
over the bond term.

• However, the total discount or premium 
amortized is the same under both methods. 

A Note on Amortization MethodsA Note on Amortization Methods



May be issued at par:
Cash

Bonds Payable

May be issued at a discount:
Cash

Discount on Bonds Payable

Bonds Payable

May be issued at a premium:
Cash

Premium on Bonds Payable

Bonds Payable

Bonds Issued on Interest DateBonds Issued on Interest Date



• Bonds may be issued between interest dates.

• Interest, for the period between the issue date and 
the last interest date, is collected with the issue 
price of the bonds (accrued interest).

• At the specified interest date, interest is paid for 
the entire interest period (semi- annual or 
annual).

• Premium or discount are also amortized from the 
date of issue of the bonds to the end of the 
interest period.  

Bonds Issued Between Interest DatesBonds Issued Between Interest Dates



Costs of issue must be amortized over the 
life of the bond issue.

Even though both straight-line and 
effective-interest methods are acceptable, 
the straight-line method is used in most 
cases. 

Accounting for the Costs of Issuing BondsAccounting for the Costs of Issuing Bonds



If extinguished at maturity there is no 
gain or loss.

When debt is extinguished early:

1. Amortization must be brought up to date, 
and

2. Any bond issue costs must be amortized up 
to date of extinguishment. 

Extinguishment of DebtExtinguishment of Debt



Notes payable and bonds payable are 
similar in that: 

both have fixed maturity dates

both have either stated or implicit rates

Like a bond, a note payable is valued at the 
present value of its future interest payments 
and face value (at maturity date).

LT Notes Payable and Bonds Payable: A ComparisonLT Notes Payable and Bonds Payable: A Comparison



If a zero-interest bearing note is issued 
for cash:

1. Present value is measured by cash 
received.

2. Implicit interest rate is that rate that 
equates the cash received with the future 
payment amount(s).

3. Any discount/premium is amortized over 
term of the note.

ZeroZero--Interest Bearing NotesInterest Bearing Notes



If interest bearing note is issued for cash 
the accounting is similar to bonds payable.

Any discount or premium is amortized 
over the term of the note.

Notes payable is credited in lieu of bonds 
payable.

Interest Bearing NotesInterest Bearing Notes



A note may be issued for items other than 
cash.

The stated interest rate is presumed fair 
(and the note is recorded at face value) 
unless:

1. No interest is stated, or

2. Stated interest rate is unreasonable, or

3. Face amount is materially different from 
current fair value.

Notes Issued for Property, Goods, or ServicesNotes Issued for Property, Goods, or Services



If the stated interest rate is not fair:

The present value of the note equals the 
fair value of the items received.

The interest element (over and above any 
stated rate) is the difference between the 
face amount of the note and the fair value 
of the property.

Notes Issued for Property, Goods, or ServicesNotes Issued for Property, Goods, or Services



Off-balance-sheet financing represents borrowing 
arrangements that are not recorded.

• The amount of debt reported in the balance sheet does 
not include such financing arrangements.

• The objective is to improve certain financial ratios 
(such as debt-equity ratio) 

Types include:

1. Non-consolidated subsidiaries

2. Special purpose entities (SPEs)

3. Operating leases

OffOff--Balance Sheet FinancingBalance Sheet Financing



Chapter 15: StockholdersChapter 15: Stockholders’’ EquityEquity

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
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New Mexico State University



1. Discuss the characteristics of the corporate 
form of organization.

2. Explain the key components of stockholders’
equity.

3. Explain the accounting procedures for issuing 
shares of stock.

4. Explain the accounting for treasury stock.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 15: StockholdersChapter 15: Stockholders’’ EquityEquity



5. Explain the accounting for and reporting of 
preferred stock.

6. Describe the policies used in distributing 
dividends.

7. Identify the various forms of dividend 
distributions.

8. Explain the accounting for small and large stock 
dividends, and for stock splits.

9. Indicate how stockholders’ equity is presented 
and analyzed.

Chapter 15: StockholdersChapter 15: Stockholders’’ EquityEquity



The stockholders have the right to:

• share proportionately in profits and losses

• share proportionately in management

• share proportionately in corporate assets upon 
liquidation

• share proportionately in any new issues of stock of 

the same class (preemptive right)

The Rights of StockholdersThe Rights of Stockholders



Normally three categories:

1. Capital stock

2. Additional-paid in capital

3. Retained earnings

The first two represent contributed capital, 
whereas retained earnings is earned 
capital.

Components of StockholdersComponents of Stockholders’’ EquityEquity



EQUITY

Earned capital
(Ret. Earn).

Contributed capital

Less:T.Stock
at COST

Less: T.stock
at PAR

Restrict Unrestritct Paid-in
capital

Additional
Paid-in

common preferred common preferred

Components of EquityComponents of Equity



Accounts must be maintained for:

Par value stock
preferred stock or common stock

paid-in capital in excess of par

discount on stock (if present)

No par stock

preferred stock or common stock

paid-in capital in excess of par

Accounting for Share IssuesAccounting for Share Issues



Par value has no economic significance.

• When par value stock is issued for cash:
Cash (proceeds)

Common Stock (# of Sh. X Par value)

Paid in Capital in Excess of Par (balance)

Many states permit no-par stock.

• When no-par stock is issued for cash:
Cash (proceeds)

Common Stock (proceeds)

Stock IssuanceStock Issuance



Both COMMON and PREFERRED stocks are 
issued for cash in a single transaction.

The two methods of allocation available are:

• Proportional Method [relative fair market values]

• Incremental Method

When stock is issued for services or property other 
than cash, the property or services are recorded at

• either the fair market value of assets received or

• the fair value of the non-cash consideration received, 
whichever is more clearly determinable

Stock Issued in LumpStock Issued in Lump--Sum SalesSum Sales



Outstanding stock, purchased by the corporation, is 
known as treasury stock.

The reasons as to why corporations buy back their 
outstanding stock may include:

1. to increase earnings per share and return on equity

2. to provide tax efficient distributions of excess cash to 
shareholders

3. to provide stock for employee stock compensation 
contracts 

4. to thwart takeover attempts

5. to create or improve the market for the stock  

Treasury StockTreasury Stock



COST METHOD:
• Treasury stock is recorded at purchase COST

• Treasury stock is a contra-stockholders’
account.

PAR VALUE METHOD:
• Treasury stock is recorded at PAR value

• It is presented as a deduction from capital      
stock

Recording Treasury Stock: MethodsRecording Treasury Stock: Methods



• Debit treasury stock for purchase cost, and 
credit treasury stock at cost if shares 
reissued.

• The initial issue price of stock does not
affect subsequent treasury stock 
transactions. 

• No gain or loss can be recognized when 
treasury shares are re-issued.

Treasury Stock: Cost MethodTreasury Stock: Cost Method



Given:

• Issued: 1,000 common shares; Par, $100; issued 
at $110.

• Reacquired: 100 shares at  $112 each.

• 10 shares were reissued at 112 (at cost).

• 10 shares were reissued at 130 (above cost).

• 10 shares were reissued at $98 (below cost).

• 10 shares reissued at $105 (below cost).

Show journal entries for these transactions.

Cost Method: ExampleCost Method: Example



Issued: (par, $100);
1,000 sh. at  $110.

Cash                        110,000 
Common stock             100,000
Additional PIC:
Common stock 10,000

1

10 shares reissued 
@ 112.

Cash                            1,120   
Treasury stock                  1,120

3

Reacquired: 
100 at  $112.

Treasury stock          11,200 
Cash                               11,200

2

Cost Method: ExampleCost Method: Example



10 shares reissued 
at 130.

Cash                            1,300     
Treasury stock                 1,120                      
Additional PIC:

Treasury stock                 180

4

10 shares reissued 
at $98.

Cash                        980   
Additional PIC:  

(T/stock)          140   
Treasury stock                1,120

5

Cost Method: ExampleCost Method: Example



Cash 1,050
Addl PIC (T/stock)                 40
Retained earnings                  30

Treasury stock                               1120

Reissued 10 treasury shares at $105 (cost = $112)
6

Use Additional PIC (Treasury stock) first
to absorb any shortfall. Then, use retained

earnings.

Cost Method: ExampleCost Method: Example



• Treasury stock is recorded at par when bought or 
reissued.

• Any shortfalls between the par value and the 
reissue price of treasury stock is borne: first by 
Paid-In and then by Retained Earnings

Par Value Method: Main PointsPar Value Method: Main Points



• Repurchase of stock does NOT mean retirement 

• Retired stock becomes authorized/unissued stock

• Active retirement is effected by application to the 
State

• Constructive retirement is effected by Board 
Resolution

Retirement of Treasury StockRetirement of Treasury Stock



Preferred stock has certain preferences or features
not possessed by common stock.

These features are:

• preference as to dividends 

• preference as to assets in the event of liquidation

• may be convertibility into common stock at the option of 
the stockholders

• may be callable at the option of the issuer

• absence of voting rights

Preferred StockPreferred Stock



• Cumulative  preferred stock

• Participating preferred stock:
• Fully Participating

• Partially Participating

• Convertible preferred stock

• Callable preferred stock

• Redeemable preferred stock
• Has features that make these securities more like debt 

than an equity instruments; therefore, these securities 
must be classified as liabilities

Preferred Stock: FeaturesPreferred Stock: Features



• Dividends come from present and past 
earnings in majority of states.

• Dividends come also from appreciation of 
assets in some states.

• Dividends restrictions are based on liquidity 
and solvency tests.

Legality of DividendsLegality of Dividends



1. Cash dividends

2. Property dividends

3. Stock dividends

4. Liquidating dividends

Types of DividendsTypes of Dividends



There are three important dates:

1. the declaration date (dividends are declared 
and accrued)

2. the record date (list of stockholders to whom 
dividends are to be paid is finalized)

3. the payment date (dividends are paid to 

stockholders of record) 

Cash Dividends: Important DatesCash Dividends: Important Dates



• DATE  DECLARED

• DATE OF RECORD

• DATE OF PAYMENT

• Retained Earnings 
Dividends Payable

• No Entry

• Dividends Payable 
Cash

Cash Dividends: Journal EntriesCash Dividends: Journal Entries



• Are payable in assets of company

• Are non-reciprocal transfers between 
corporation and shareholders

• Are equal to the fair market value of assets 
distributed at time of declaration [except in 
spin-offs and reorganizations]

• Corporation recognizes gain/loss on the 
distribution 

Property DividendsProperty Dividends



• Stock dividends result in more shares being issued 
as dividend (no cash flow is involved).

• Small stock dividends involve issues of less than 
20%–25% of stock.

• The accounting for small stock dividends is based 
on the fair market value of stock issued.

• The accounting for large stock dividends (more 
than 20%–25%) is based on the par value of stock 
issued.

Stock Dividends: ConceptStock Dividends: Concept



Par value of a share does not 
change

Total number of shares 
increases

Total stockholders’ equity does 
not change

The composition of equity 
changes (less of retained 
earnings; more of stock)

Stock dividends require journal 
entries

Par value of a share does not 
change

Total number of shares 
increases

Total stockholders’ equity does 
not change

The composition of equity 
changes (less of retained 
earnings; more of stock)

Stock dividends require journal 
entries

Par value of a share 
decreases

Total number of shares 
increases

Total stockholders’ equity 
does not change

The composition of equity 
does not change (same 
amounts of stock and RE)

Stock splits do not require 
journal entries

Par value of a share 
decreases

Total number of shares 
increases

Total stockholders’ equity 
does not change

The composition of equity 
does not change (same 
amounts of stock and RE)

Stock splits do not require 
journal entries

Stock Dividends Stock Splits

Stock Dividends and Stock SplitsStock Dividends and Stock Splits



Typical format:

1. Balance at beginning of the period

2. Additions

3. Deductions

4. Balance at end of period

Statement of StockholdersStatement of Stockholders’’ EquityEquity



Commonly used ratios:

1. Rate of return on equity:
Net income – Preferred dividends

Average common equity

2. Payout ratio:                                                   
Cash dividends                                

Net income – preferred dividends

3. Book Value per share:
Common stockholders’ equity

Outstanding shares

AnalysisAnalysis



Chapter 16: Dilutive Securities and Earnings per ShareChapter 16: Dilutive Securities and Earnings per Share
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Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield

Prepared by
Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Describe the accounting for the issuance, conversion, 
and retirement of convertible securities.

2. Explain the accounting for convertible preferred stock.

3. Contrast the accounting for stock warrants and for 
stock warrants issued with other securities.

4. Describe the accounting for stock compensation plans 
under generally accepted accounting principles.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 16: Dilutive Securities and Chapter 16: Dilutive Securities and 

Earnings per ShareEarnings per Share



5. Explain the controversy involving stock 
compensation plans.

6. Compute earnings per share in a simple capital 
structure.

7. Compute earnings per share in a complex capital 
structure.

Chapter 16: Dilutive Securities and Chapter 16: Dilutive Securities and 

Earnings per ShareEarnings per Share



• At issuance: parallels accounting for 
straight debt.

• At conversion, typically the book value of 
the bonds is removed and replaced with 
common stock.

• Cost of induced conversions is a period 
expense.

• Conversion is initiated by security holder.

Convertible Bonds: ConceptsConvertible Bonds: Concepts



Given: 

• One $1,000 bond, issued at $45 premium

• The bond is convertible into 10 common 
shares of $10 par

• At conversion: unamortized premium is $30

Record the conversion using the book value 
method.

Conversion of Debt: ExampleConversion of Debt: Example



Bonds payable 1,000
Premium on bonds payable        30

Common stock                   100
Paid-in-cap  930

Conversion of Debt: ExampleConversion of Debt: Example



• Convertible preferred stock is equity, 
unless it is redeemable preferred stock.

• Conversion is an equity transaction: hence, 
no gains or losses are recognized.

• If converted, valuation is based on the 
book value of the preferred stock.

Convertible Preferred Stock: ConceptsConvertible Preferred Stock: Concepts



• Stock warrants entitle the holder to acquire 
additional common stock within a stipulated period 
at a specified price.

• Typically have a dilutive effect on EPS.

• Cash is received by issuer upon exercise.

• May be issued independently or with another 
security.

• Stock warrants are also known as stock options.

Stock Warrants: ConceptsStock Warrants: Concepts



Stock warrants may be:

• either detachable warrants, or 

• non-detachable warrants

If warrants are detachable, value of the 
warrants is determined by:

• either the proportional method, or 

• the incremental method.

If warrants are non-detachable, no allocation to 
warrants is made.

Stock Warrants Issued with Other SecuritiesStock Warrants Issued with Other Securities



Given:

• Bonds, with a par value of $10,000 and 
detachable warrants, are sold at par. 

• Bonds’ FMV without the warrants is 
$9,800.

• FMV of warrants is $400.

Allocate the $10,000 to bonds and the 
detachable warrants.

Proportional Method: ExampleProportional Method: Example



Total proceeds from
the bond issue:
$10,000 [given]

Allocate to Warrants:

$400/$10,200 FMV
[times]

$10,000 [issue]

$392$392
Allocate to Bonds:

$9,800/$10,200 FMV
X

$10,000 [issue]
$9,608$9,608

Proportional Method: ExampleProportional Method: Example



Journal entries:

Cash 9,608

Discount (Bonds Payable)            392
Bonds Payable 10,000

Cash 392
Paid-in (Stock warrants) 392

Proportional Method: ExampleProportional Method: Example



Given:

• Bonds, with a par value of $10,000 and detachable 
warrants, are sold at par. 

• Market price of warrants, $300.

• Market price of bonds without warrants, not 
determinable.

Determine the amounts allocated to the bonds and the 
warrants 

Total receipt     less     warrants    =    bonds $10,000
— $300 =   $9,700

Incremental Method: ExampleIncremental Method: Example



• Stock rights give existing shareholders 
preemptive rights to buy shares.

• Unlike warrants, rights are of short duration.

• No journal entries are made, when rights are 
issued.

• When stock rights are exercised, corporation 
usually receives cash. 

Stock RightsStock Rights



These plans provide employee incentives 
and may be:

1. Stock option plans:

– incentive plans [IRS approved], or

– non-qualified plans

2. Stock appreciation rights 

3. Performance plans

Stock Compensation PlansStock Compensation Plans



• What is the value of the compensation (if 
any)?

• When, if at all, should it be recognized?

• Two possible ways to measure 
compensation expense are:
– the intrinsic method, or

– the fair value method (required method)

Stock Option Plans: Accounting IssuesStock Option Plans: Accounting Issues



Work
start date

Vesting 
date

Date
employee
can first
exercise
options

Exercise
date

Employee
exercises
options

Grant 
date

Options 
are 

granted to
employee

Expiration
date

Unexercised
options
expire

Stock Options: Important DatesStock Options: Important Dates



Intrinsic value method:

• Compensation expense is the difference between:

• the market price of the stock (at grant date), and the 
exercise price of options (at grant date).

Fair value method (required method):

Compensation expense is:

• the fair value of the options on grant date that are expected 
to vest. 

• option pricing models may be used to determine fair 
value.

Measuring Compensation ExpenseMeasuring Compensation Expense



Compensation ExpenseCompensation Expense

> The compensation expense is calculated using the fair value method.

>  The service period is the period benefited by employee’s service.

ØThe service period is usually the period between the grant date 
and the vesting date. 

is determined as of the 
grant date 

and is allocated over
the service period

Options: Allocating Compensation ExpenseOptions: Allocating Compensation Expense



Stock Compensation Plans: ControversyStock Compensation Plans: Controversy

• The FASB amended the accounting standards 
requiring the fair value method for recognizing 
stock-based compensation in December 2004. 
Prior to this amendment companies could use 
either the intrinsic or the fair value method.

Stock Compensation Plans: ControversyStock Compensation Plans: Controversy



Political and economic pressures on the FASB to 
amend the accounting standards for recognizing 
stock-based compensation resulted from:

• Research indicated that use of intrinsic method 
results in “overstating” of earnings.

• Prior to 2002, very few companies used the fair 
value method, thus usually recognizing no 
compensation expense.

Stock Compensation Plans: ControversyStock Compensation Plans: Controversy



• Options granted disproportionately to a few 
top executives.

• Form versus substance issue.

• Users of financial statements were concerned 
that the intrinsic value method did not 
faithfully represent the economic transactions.

Stock Compensation Plans: ControversyStock Compensation Plans: Controversy

Stock Compensation Plans: ControversyStock Compensation Plans: Controversy



• In 2002, some companies began to voluntarily 
adopted the fair value method while others 
continued to use the intrinsic value method. 
Thus, similar economic transactions were not 
accounted for similarly.

• Lack of convergence with international 
accounting standards.

Stock Compensation Plans: ControversyStock Compensation Plans: Controversy



• Reported on the income statement.

• EPS is often the focus of investors.

• Dilution of EPS means reduction in EPS.

• Reduction in EPS results from conversion of 
other securities into common stock.

• Shareholders want to know the extent of 
reduction in EPS, if dilution takes place.

Earnings Per Share: ConceptsEarnings Per Share: Concepts



Relation between Basic and Diluted EPSRelation between Basic and Diluted EPS



• Simple capital structure: 

– Common stock only with no potentially 
dilutive securities

• Basic EPS: 

Net income — Preferred dividends

Weighted average outstanding common 
shares

Simple Capital Structure: Basic EPSSimple Capital Structure: Basic EPS



Complex capital structures have potentially 
dilutive securities, such as:

• Convertible bonds or preferred stock.

• Options or warrants, or

• Other rights that could reduce earnings per share.

Securities that could reduce EPS are dilutive.

Securities that could increase EPS are anti-
dilutive.

Complex Capital StructuresComplex Capital Structures



• The dilutive effect of convertible securities is 
measured by the if-converted method.

• The dilutive effect of options and warrants is 
measured by the treasury stock method.

• For computing dilution, the rate of conversion 
most advantageous to the security holder is used 
(maximum dilutive conversion rate).

Diluted Earnings Per Share: MethodsDiluted Earnings Per Share: Methods



• The conversion of the securities into common 
stock is assumed to occur at the beginning of the 
year or date of issue, if later.

• Convertible bonds: The interest expense (net of 
tax) is added back to net income.

• Convertible preferred: No deduction for preferred 
dividends.

• The weighted average number of shares is 
increased by the additional common shares 
assumed issued.

The IfThe If--Converted MethodConverted Method



• Applies to options and warrants (and their 
equivalents).

• Options and warrants are assumed exercised at the 
beginning of the year.

• The proceeds from the exercise of options are 
assumed used to buy back common shares at 
average market price.

• The exercise price per share must be less than the 
market price per share for dilution to occur.

The Treasury Stock MethodThe Treasury Stock Method



Dual EPS Presentation

Basic EPS Diluted  EPS

Dilutive Convertibles

Dilutive Options and
Warrants 

Dilutive Contingent 
Issues

Net income adjusted for interest
(net of tax) and preferred dividends

Weighted average number of 
common shares assuming maximum

dilution

Earnings Per Share: Complex Structures: Summary Earnings Per Share: Complex Structures: Summary 
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1. Identify the three categories of debt securities 
and describe the accounting and reporting 
treatment for each category.

2. Understand the procedures for discount and 
premium amortization on bond investments.

3. Identify the categories of equity securities and 
describe the accounting and reporting treatment 
for each category.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 17: InvestmentsChapter 17: Investments



4. Explain the equity method of accounting and 
compare it to the fair value method for equity 
securities.

5. Describe the disclosure requirements for 
investments in debt and equity securities.

6. Discuss the accounting for impairments of debt 
and equity investments.

7. Describe the accounting for transfer of 
investment securities between categories.

Chapter 17: InvestmentsChapter 17: Investments



SFAS No. 115

Debt Securities Equity Securities

Trading
Available
for Sale

Held to
Maturity

Trading
Available
for Sale

Investment Categories Under SFAS 115Investment Categories Under SFAS 115



Equity Securities

Equity Method
If 20% to 50% 
voting stock

Consolidations
If more than 50% 

voting stock

APB No. 118: ScopeAPB No. 118: Scope



Debt Instruments Represent a 
Creditor Relationship 

M.V.changes 
recorded as part 
of income

M.V.changes
recorded as part 
of equity

M.V. changes
not recognized

Trading
Securities

Available
for Sale 

Held-to-
Maturity

Record at
fair value

Record at 
Amortized cost

Record at 
fair value

Debt Securities: Types and Reported AmountsDebt Securities: Types and Reported Amounts



The investor has both:

• a positive intent to hold the securities, and

• the ability to hold them to maturity.

These securities are accounted for at amortized 
cost, not fair value.

HeldHeld--toto--Maturity Debt SecuritiesMaturity Debt Securities



• These investments are reported at fair value
in the balance sheet.

• Differences between the fair value and 
amortized cost are reported as unrealized 
holding gains and losses (part of equity).

• When realized, gains and losses in fair 
value are reported as part of net income.

Debt Securities: AvailableDebt Securities: Available--forfor--SaleSale



• Trading securities are used to generate profits 
from short-term differences in prices.

• The holding period is usually less than 3 months.

• The securities are reported at fair value.

• Unrealized gains and losses are reported as part of 
net income.

• Any discount or premium is not amortized.

Debt Securities: TradingDebt Securities: Trading



Issues:

• At what value is the security transferred?

• How are gains and losses accounted for?

• What is the effect of the gain/loss 
accounting on income and equity?

Debt Securities: Transfers Between CategoriesDebt Securities: Transfers Between Categories



Type of       Measurement            Impact of Impact of 
Transfer             Basis Transfer on Transfer on 

Stockholders’ Equity Net Income

Trading Transferred at      Unrealized gains or    Unrealized gains or
to fair value to         losses at date of         losses at date of
Available Available for transfer increase         transfer are
for Sale Sale category      or decrease recognized in

and is the new    stockholders’ income.
COST basis equity.
of security

Transfers Between CategoriesTransfers Between Categories



Type of Measurement         Impact of Impact of 
Transfer            Basis Transfer on Transfer on 

Stockholders’ Equity      Net Income

From Transferred at The unrealized           The unrealized   
Available fair value at the gains or losses at        gains or losses at
for date of transfer the date of the date of transfer
Sale and becomes transfer increase        is recognized
to the new COST or decrease in income
Trading basis of security stockholders’

equity

Transfers Between CategoriesTransfers Between Categories



Type of Measurement            Impact of Impact of 
Transfer            Basis Transfer on Transfer on 

Stockholders’ Equity           Net Income

From Transferred at      Unrealized gains or None
Held fair value at         losses at date of
to date of transfer   transfer increase or
Maturity decrease a separate
to component of equity
Available
for
Sale

Transfers Between CategoriesTransfers Between Categories



Type of Measurement            Impact of Impact of 
Transfer             Basis Transfer on Transfer on 

Stockholders’ Equity Net Income

From Transferred at     The unrealized gain None
Available fair value at or loss (at date of
for date of transfer   transfer) is carried 
Sale as a separate
to component of equity
Held and is amortized
to over the remaining
Maturity life of the security

Transfers Between CategoriesTransfers Between Categories



• Equity securities represent ownership interests 
such as common, preferred, or other capital stock.

• They include rights to buy and sell the ownership 
interests.

• Convertible debt and redeemable preferred stock 
are not equity securities for this purpose.

• The extent of ownership in common stock by an 
investor in an investee determines the accounting 
treatment for equity securities.

Equity SecuritiesEquity Securities



0% 20% 50% 100%

Ownership Percentage

Little Significant Control
or none

Investments in Equity Interests: Level of InfluenceInvestments in Equity Interests: Level of Influence



The FASB has provided examples of cases 
in which significant influence may not
exist:

• Investee opposes investor’s acquisition of stock

• Investor surrenders significant shareholder rights

• Investor is unable to obtain needed financial 
information from investee

• Investor is unable to obtain representation on 
investee’s board of directors

Absence of Significant Influence by Investor: Absence of Significant Influence by Investor: 

ExamplesExamples



• Securities when acquired are recorded at cost

• Subsequent to acquisition, the investments are 
valued and reported at fair value

• Cash dividends are reported as income

• Unrealized holding gains and losses are reported 
as:

• part of comprehensive income, and

• a component of stockholders’ equity    

Equity Securities: Available for Sale SecuritiesEquity Securities: Available for Sale Securities



The accounting guidelines are the same as for the 
available for sale securities, with one exception.

• Securities when acquired are recorded at cost

• Subsequent to acquisition, the investments are 
valued and reported at fair value

• Cash dividends are reported as income

• EXCEPT: Unrealized holding gains and losses are 
reported in net income

Equity Securities: TradingEquity Securities: Trading



• Investor has significant influence over the investee

• Investment is initially recorded at cost

• The investment’s carrying value is increased by 
investor’s proportionate share of earnings

• The investment’s carrying value is decreased by:

• investor’s proportionate share of losses

• dividends declared by investee 

Equity MethodEquity Method



• Two models are used to determine whether 
consolidated financial statements should be 
prepared.

– Voting-interest model – controlling voting interest

– Risk-and-reward model – controlling financial 
interest

Investments in Equity Securities: ConsolidationInvestments in Equity Securities: Consolidation



• A voting interest of more than 50% results in a 
controlling interest.

• The investor is the parent corporation; the investee 
is the subsidiary corporation.

• The investor prepares consolidated financial 
statements for the parent and the subsidiary.

Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation ––

VotingVoting--interest Modelinterest Model



Investments in Equity Securities: VotingInvestments in Equity Securities: Voting--interest Modelinterest Model

• A company can have a controlling financial 
interest without having a controlling voting 
interest.

• First, determine whether the entity is a variable 
interest entity (VIE)

• If so, the primary beneficiary must consolidate 
the VIE

Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation -- RiskRisk--andand--reward reward 

ModelModel



• An entity is a VIE is it has one of the 
following characteristics:

– Insufficient equity investment at risk

– Stockholders lack decision-making rights

– Stockholders do not absorb the losses or receive 
the benefits of a normal stockholder

Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation -- RiskRisk--andand--reward Modelreward Model



Investments in Equity Securities: RiskInvestments in Equity Securities: Risk--andand--reward Modelreward Model

• The primary beneficiary is the party that has 
the most risks and rewards exposure.

• The primary beneficiary of the VIE must 
consolidate the VIE.

Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation Investments in Equity Securities: Consolidation -- RiskRisk--andand--reward reward 
ModelModel



Ownership in Capital Stock

less than 
20% of voting and

not primary 
beneficiary of VIE

20 - 50%  of voting
and not primary

beneficiary
of VIE

more than 
50% voting or 

primary 
beneficiary of VIE

Trading
Available
for Sale

Equity
method

Consolidation

Fair
value

Fair
value

Equity
method

No
Consolidation

Investments in Equity Securities: SummaryInvestments in Equity Securities: Summary



Category Valuation Unrealized Holding Other Income
Gains and Losses Effects

<20% Fair value Other income and Dividends;
Avail for sale Equity G & L (sale)

<20% Fair value Net income Dividends;
Trading G & L (sale)

20% - Equity Not recognized Proportionate
50% investee’s inc

>50% or Consolidate Not recognized Not applicable
primary beneficiary of VIE

Equity Securities: Accounting By CategoryEquity Securities: Accounting By Category



Must report amounts for each category of 
investments:

1. Trading: reported at aggregate fair value as 
current assets.

2. Available-for-sale: reported at aggregate fair 
value and either current or noncurrent assets.

3. Held-to-maturity: reported at amortized cost and 
either current or noncurrent assets.

PresentationPresentation



Impairment exists when a decline in value is other 
than temporary. If so, the carrying value must be 
written down.

Debt securities: if the investor will not collect 
monies owed.

Equity securities: must consider financial condition 
of investee to determine if decline is other than 
temporary.

ImpairmentsImpairments
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1. Apply the revenue recognition principle.

2. Describe accounting issues involved with 
revenue recognition at point of sale.

3. Apply the percentage-of-completion method 
for long-term contracts.

4. Apply the completed-contract method for 
long-term contracts.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 18: Revenue RecognitionChapter 18: Revenue Recognition



5. Identify the proper accounting for losses 
on long-term contracts.

6. Describe the installment-sales method of 
accounting.

7. Explain the cost recovery method of 
accounting.

Chapter 18: Revenue RecognitionChapter 18: Revenue Recognition



The revenue recognition principle provides that 
revenue is recognized:
– when it is earned, and

– when it is realized or realizable

Revenue is earned when the earnings process is 
substantially complete.

Revenue is realized when goods and services are 
exchanged for cash or claims to cash.

Revenue is realizable when assets received are 
convertible into a known amount of cash.

Guidelines for Revenue RecognitionGuidelines for Revenue Recognition



• Revenue from selling products is recognized at the 
date of sale (date of delivery).

• Revenue from services is recognized when 
services are performed and are billable.

• Revenue from the use of enterprise’s assets by 
others is recognized as time passes or as the assets 
are used up.

• Revenue from disposal of assets (other than 
inventory) is recognized at the point of sale as 
gain or loss.

Four Types of Revenue TransactionsFour Types of Revenue Transactions



Revenue Recognition Classified by Nature of Revenue Recognition Classified by Nature of 

TransactionTransaction



Revenues from manufacturing and selling 
are commonly recognized at point of sale.

Exceptions:

1. Sales with buyback agreements

2. Sales when right of return exists (high rates that are 
not reliably estimable)

3. Trade loading and channel stuffing

Revenue Recognition at Point of SaleRevenue Recognition at Point of Sale



Revenue may be recognized before 
delivery under certain circumstances.

• Long-term construction contracts are a notable 
example

Two methods are available:

• The percentage-of-completion method, and

• The completed contract method

Revenue Recognition Before DeliveryRevenue Recognition Before Delivery



Long-Term Construction
Accounting Methods

1)  Terms of contract must
be certain, enforceable.

2) Certainty of performance
by both parties

3) Estimates of completion
can be made reliably

1) To be used only when 
the percentage method is 
inapplicable [uncertain]

2) For short-term contracts

Percentage-of-Completion
Method

Completed Contract
Method

Revenue Recognition Before DeliveryRevenue Recognition Before Delivery



Costs incurred to date        =   Percent complete
Most recent estimated total costs

11

Estimated total revenue  x  Percent complete
=  Revenue to be recognized to date

22

Total revenue to be recognized to date less Revenue 
recognized in PRIOR periods  =  Current period revenue

33

Current Period Revenue less current costs = Gross profit44

PercentagePercentage--ofof--Completion: StepsCompletion: Steps



• Cost of construction: 
Construction in process (CIP) 

Materials, cash, payables, etc.

• Progress billings:
Accounts receivable

Billings on CIP

• Collections:
Cash

Accounts receivable

PercentagePercentage--ofof--Completion: EntriesCompletion: Entries



• To recognize revenue and gross profit: 

Construction in process (gross profit) 

Construction expenses

Revenue

• To record completion of project:

Billings on CIP

Construction in process

PercentagePercentage--ofof--Completion: EntriesCompletion: Entries



Data:  Contract price: $4,500,000    Estimated cost: $4,000,000
Start date:        July, 2003     Finish: October, 2005
Balance sheet date:               Dec. 31

Given: 2003 2004 2005

Costs to date $1,000,000  $2,916,000  $4,050,000
Estimated costs to complete $3,000,000  $1,134,000  $      -0-
Progress Billings during year     $900,000  $2,400,000  $1,200,000
Cash collected during year $750,000 $1,750,000  $2,000,000

What is the percent complete, revenue and gross 
profit recognized each year?

PercentagePercentage--ofof--Completion: ExampleCompletion: Example



2003 2004 2005

% complete 
to-date

1,000,000 = 25% 2,916,000= 72% 100 %
4,000,000 4,050,000

Revenue 
recognized

4,500,000 * 25%    4,500,000 * 72%   4,500,000
= 1,125,000 less 1,125,000    less 3,240,000

= 2,115,000 = 1,260,000

1,125,000 less 2,115,000 less     1,260,000
1,000,000 1,916,000          less 1,134,000
= 125,000 = 199,000 = 126,000

Gross Profit
recognized

PercentagePercentage--ofof--Completion: ExampleCompletion: Example



A long-term contract may produce:

• either an interim loss and an overall profit,

• or an overall loss for the project

Under the percentage-of-completion method, 
losses in any case are immediately recognized.

Under the completed contract method, losses are 
recognized immediately only when overall losses 
are indicated.

Recognizing Current & Overall Losses on LongRecognizing Current & Overall Losses on Long--Term Term 

ContractsContracts



Current Loss on
an otherwise
overall profitable
contract

Completed method:
No adjustment needed.

Percentage Method: 
Recognize loss currently.

Loss on an
overall unprofitable
contract

Percentage Method: 
Recognize entire loss now.

Completed method: 
Recognize loss currently.

Recognizing Current & Overall Losses on LongRecognizing Current & Overall Losses on Long--Term Term 

ContractsContracts



Revenue recognition is deferred when 
collection of sales price is not reasonably 
assured and no reliable estimates can be 
made.

The two methods that are used are:
• the installment sales method

• the cost recovery method

If cash is received prior to delivery, the 
method used is the deposit method. 

Revenue Recognition After DeliveryRevenue Recognition After Delivery



• This method emphasizes income recognition in 
periods of collection rather than at point of sale.

• Title does not pass to the buyer until all cash 
payments have been made to the seller.

• Both sales and cost of sales are deferred to the 
periods of collection.

• Other expenses, selling and administrative, are not 
deferred.

The Installment Sales MethodThe Installment Sales Method



• Installment sales must be kept separate

• Gross profit on installment sales must be 
determinable

• The amount of cash collected from installment 
accounts must be known

• The cash collected from current years’ and prior 
years’ accounts must be known

• Provision must be made for the carry forward of 
each year’s deferred gross profit

The Installment Sales Method: IssuesThe Installment Sales Method: Issues



• For installment sales in 
any year

• For installment sales 
made in prior years 
(realized gross profit) 

• Determine rate of gross 
profit on installment sales

• Apply this rate to cash 
collections of current 
year’s installment sales to 
yield realized gross profit

• The gross profit not 
realized is deferred

• Apply the relevant rate to 
cash collections of prior 
year’s installment sales 

The Installment Sales Method: StepsThe Installment Sales Method: Steps



Given: 2003 2004 2005

 Installment sales $200,000 $250,000 $240,000

 Cost of sales $150,000 $190,000 $168,000

 Gross Profit $ 50,000 $ 60,000      $ 72,000

Cash received in:

 from 2003 sales $  60,000 $  100,000 $  40,000

 from 2004 sales $    -0- $  100,000 $125,000

 from 2005 sales $    -0- $      -0- $  80,000

 Determine the realized and deferred gross profit.

The Installment Sales Method: ExampleThe Installment Sales Method: Example



Given: 2003            2004 2005

Installment sales $200,000 $250,000   $240,000

Gross Profit $  50,000 $  60,000  $  72,000

Gross profit rate 25% 24% 30%

See next slide for realized and deferred gross 
profit

The Installment Sales Method: ExampleThe Installment Sales Method: Example



2003 2004        2005

Gross profit rate 25% 24% 30%

Realized Gross Profit:

From 2003 sales:

Realized in $  15,000       $  25,000 $  10,000

From 2004 sales:

Realized in: $    -0- $   24,000 $  30,000

From 2005 sales:

Realized in:      $    -0- $      -0- $   24,000

Gross profit deferred

deferred

The Installment Sales Method: ExampleThe Installment Sales Method: Example



Installment Sales 200,000 Cost of 
Sales 150,000 Deferred 
Gross Profit, 2003 50,000 (To close 
2003 accounts)

Deferred Gross Profit, 2003 15,000
Realized Gross Profit       15,000
(Realized: $60,000 x 25%)

Realized Gross Profit 15,000
Income Summary 15,000
(To close to Income Summary)

The Installment Sales Method: Partial Journal Entries The Installment Sales Method: Partial Journal Entries 

(2003) for Gross Profit(2003) for Gross Profit



Seller recognizes no profit until cash payments by 
buyer exceed seller’s cost of merchandise.

After recovering all costs, seller includes 
additional cash collections in income.

This method is to be used where there is no 
reasonable basis for estimating collectibility as in 
franchises and real estate.

The income statement reports the amount of gross 
profit recognized and the amount deferred.

The Cost Recovery MethodThe Cost Recovery Method



• Seller receives cash from buyer before transfer of 
goods or performance.

• The seller has no claim against the purchaser.

• There is insufficient transfer of risks to buyer to 
warrant recording a sale by seller.

• In the case of such incomplete transactions, the 
deposit method is used.

• The deposit method thus defers sale recognition
until a sale has occurred for accounting purposes.

The Deposit MethodThe Deposit Method
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1. Identify differences between pretax financial 
income and taxable income.

2. Describe a temporary difference that results in 
future taxable amounts.

3. Describe a temporary difference that results in 
future deductible amounts.

4. Explain the purpose of a deferred tax asset 
valuation allowance.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 19: Accounting for Income TaxesChapter 19: Accounting for Income Taxes



5. Describe the presentation of income tax 
expense in the the income statement.

6. Describe various temporary and permanent 
differences.

7. Explain the effect of various tax rates and 
tax rate changes on deferred income taxes.

8. Apply accounting procedures for a loss 
carryback and a loss carryforward.

Chapter 19: Accounting for Income TaxesChapter 19: Accounting for Income Taxes



9. Describe the presentation of deferred income 
taxes in financial statements.

10. Indicate the basic principles of the asset-
liability method.

Chapter 19: Accounting for Income TaxesChapter 19: Accounting for Income Taxes



Fundamental Differences between Financial and Tax Fundamental Differences between Financial and Tax 

ReportingReporting



• Deferred taxes arise when income tax expense 
differs from income tax liability.

• The tax expense is determined under GAAP.

• The income tax liability is determined under the 
Internal Revenue Code.

• Some of these differences are temporary and 
reverse over time.

• Others are permanent and do not reverse.  

Deferred Taxes: BasicsDeferred Taxes: Basics



• Revenues and gains, recognized in financial 
income, are later taxed for income tax purposes.

• Expenses and losses, recognized in financial 
income, are later deducted for income tax 
purposes.

• Revenues and gains are taxed for income tax 
purposes before they are recognized in financial 
income.

• Expenses and losses are deducted for income tax 
purposes before they are recognized in financial 
income.

Temporary Differences: ExamplesTemporary Differences: Examples



Transaction
When recorded

in books
When recorded
on tax return

Deferred
tax effect

Rev or Gain Earlier Later Liability

Rev or Gain Later Earlier Asset

Exp or Loss Earlier Later Asset

Exp or Loss Later Earlier Liability

Summary of Temporary DifferencesSummary of Temporary Differences



Items, recognized for financial accounting 
purposes, but not for income tax purposes:

• interest income received on tax exempt 
securities

• fines and expenses resulting from violations 
of law

• Premiums paid for life insurance on key 
officers/employees

Permanent Differences: ExamplesPermanent Differences: Examples



Items, recognized for tax purposes, but not

for financial accounting purposes:

• the dividends received deduction under the 
Code

• percentage depletion of natural resources in 
excess of their cost 

Permanent Differences: ExamplesPermanent Differences: Examples



Sources of Permanent Differences

No deferred tax effects
for permanent differences

Some items are recorded
in Books

but NEVER
on tax return

Other items are NEVER
recorded in books

but recorded
on tax return

Summary of Permanent DifferencesSummary of Permanent Differences



Deferred taxes may be a: 

• Deferred tax liability, or

• Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liability arises due to net 
taxable amounts in the future.

Deferred tax asset arises due to net 
deductible amounts in the future.

Deferred Tax Asset & Deferred Tax Liability: SourcesDeferred Tax Asset & Deferred Tax Liability: Sources



If the deferred tax asset appears doubtful, a 
Valuation Allowance account is needed.

Journal entry:
Income Tax Expense      $$

Allowance to Reduce
Deferred Tax Asset to
Expected Realizable Value $$

The entry records a potential future tax benefit that 
is not expected to be realized in the future.

Recording a Valuation Allowance for Doubtful Recording a Valuation Allowance for Doubtful 

Deferred Tax AssetsDeferred Tax Assets



• Basic Rule: Apply the yearly tax rate to calculate 
deferred tax effects.

• If future tax rates change: use the enacted tax rate
expected to apply in the future year.

• If new rates are not yet enacted into law for future 
years, the current rate should be used. 

• The appropriate enacted rate for a year is the 
average tax rate [based on graduated tax brackets].

Deferred Taxes: Applying Tax RatesDeferred Taxes: Applying Tax Rates



• When a change in tax rate is enacted, its 
effect should be recorded immediately.

• The effect is reported as an adjustment to 
tax expense in the period of change.

• Changes in tax rates are treated just like any 
other change in estimate, prospectively.

Revision of Future Tax RatesRevision of Future Tax Rates



End of 2002, corporate tax rate is changed from 40% 
to 35%.

The new rate is effective January 1, 2004.

The deferred tax account (1/1/2002) is as follows:

Excess tax depreciation: $3 million

Deferred tax liability: $1.2 million

Related taxable amounts are expected to occur 
equally over 2003, 2004, and 2005.

Provide the journal entry to reflect the change.

Revision of Future Tax Rates: ExampleRevision of Future Tax Rates: Example



The deferred tax liability end of 2005 is as follows:

2003 2004 2005

Future tax inc  $1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Tax rate 40% 35%              35%

Deferred tax $400,000 350,000 350,000

liability      

Entry:

Deferred Tax Liability $100,000
Income Tax Expense $100,000*

*$1,200,000 – $1,100,000

Revision of Future Tax Rates: ExampleRevision of Future Tax Rates: Example



Balance Sheet Presentation:

• The deferred tax classification relates to its 
underlying asset or liability.

• Classify the deferred tax amounts as current or 
non-current.

• Sum the various deferred tax assets and liabilities 
classified as current.

• Sum the various deferred tax assets and liabilities 
classified as non-current. 

Balance Sheet PresentationBalance Sheet Presentation



Balance Sheet Presentation:

• Sum the various deferred tax assets and 
liabilities classified as current:
• If net result is an asset, report as current asset

• If net result is a liability, report as current liability

• Sum the various deferred tax assets and liabilities 
classified as non-current:
• If net result is an asset, report as long-term asset

• If net result is a liability, report as long-term liability

Balance Sheet PresentationBalance Sheet Presentation



Income tax expense, is allocated to:
• Continuing operations

• Discontinued operations

• Extraordinary items

• Cumulative effect of an accounting change, and

• Prior period adjustments

Disclose other significant components, such 
as:

• current tax expense, 

• deferred tax expense/benefit, etc.

Income Statement PresentationIncome Statement Presentation



Net operating loss is a tax terminology.

A net operating loss occurs when tax 
deductions for a year exceed taxable 
revenues.

Net loss or operating loss is a financial 
accounting term. 

NOL can be derived from net loss, but these 
two amounts must be kept separately.

Net Operating Losses [Net Operating Losses [NOLsNOLs]: Basic Terminology]: Basic Terminology



• NOL for each tax year is computed.

• The NOL of one year can be applied to 
offset taxable income of other years, 
possibly resulting in tax refunds

• NOLs can be:

carried back 2 years and carried forward 20 years 
(carryback option), or carried forward 20 years 
(carryforward only)

NOLsNOLs: Rules of Application: Rules of Application



• If NOLs are carried back 2 years and carried 
forward 20 years:

• NOL is applied to the earlier of the 2-year period, 
then to the immediately preceding year, etc.

• Remaining NOLs are applied to the following 20-
year period.

• Any tax refunds are reported in the year of the 
original net operating loss.

Net Operating Loss: Net Operating Loss: CarrybackCarryback RulesRules



2001    2002    2003       2004     2005    2006    2007  20242001    2002    2003       2004     2005    2006    2007  2024

NOL
2004

NOL
2004

Tax years

Apply first

next

Loss carryforward
20 years forward

Expect 
tax refund

here

Expect 
tax refund

here
Record all

tax effects here

Record all
tax effects here

Expect
tax

shield
here

Expect
tax

shield
here

NOL NOL CarrybackCarryback RulesRules



2001   2002    2003       2004     2053    2006    2007    20242001   2002    2003       2004     2053    2006    2007    2024

NOL
2004

NOL
2004

Tax years

Loss carryforward
20 years forward

Record all
tax effects here

Record all
tax effects here

Expect
tax

shield
here

Expect
tax

shield
here

Forgo 2
year rule

NOL NOL CarryforwardCarryforward RulesRules



• A current tax liability or asset is recognized for the 
estimated taxes payable or refundable on the tax return 
for current year.

• A deferred tax liability or asset is recognized for the 
estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary 
differences and carryforwards.

• The measurement of current and deferred tax liabilities 
and assets is based on provisions of enacted tax law, 
effects of future changes in tax law or rates are not 
anticipated.

• The measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced, if 
necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits that are not 
expected to be realized.

Basic Principles of AssetBasic Principles of Asset--Liability MethodLiability Method



Chapter 20: Accounting for Pensions and Chapter 20: Accounting for Pensions and 

Postretirement BenefitsPostretirement Benefits

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield

Prepared by
Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Distinguish between accounting for employer’s 
pension plan and accounting for the pension 
fund.

2. Identify types of pension plans and their 
characteristics.

3. Explain alternative measures for valuing the 
pension obligation.

4. Identify the components of pension expense.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 20: Accounting for Pensions and Chapter 20: Accounting for Pensions and 

Postretirement BenefitsPostretirement Benefits



5. Utilize a work sheet for employer's pension plan 
entries.

6. Describe the amortization of unrecognized prior 
service costs.

7. Explain the accounting procedure for recognizing 
unexpected gains and losses.

8. Explain the corridor approach to amortizing 
unrecognized gains and losses.

9. Explain the recognition of a minimum liability.

10. Describe the reporting requirements for pension plans 
in financial statements.

Chapter 20: Accounting for Pensions and Chapter 20: Accounting for Pensions and 

Postretirement BenefitsPostretirement Benefits



Flow of Cash among Pension Plan ParticipantsFlow of Cash among Pension Plan Participants



• Accounting Standard: “SFAS 87: 
Accounting for Pension Plans” [1985]

• A pension plan provides benefits to retirees 
for services provided during employment.

• There are defined contribution and defined 
benefit plans.

Types of Pension PlansTypes of Pension Plans



• Employer contributes a defined sum to a (third 
party) plan trust.

• Plan accumulates assets and makes distributions to 
retirees.

• Employer’s pension expense is equal to annual 
contribution needed (employees are beneficiaries).

• If contribution made is less than pension expense, 
employer accrues a liability.

• If contribution > expense, employer accrues an 
asset.

Defined Contribution PlansDefined Contribution Plans



• The employee is promised a certain amount 
of benefits at retirement (usually periodic).

• The trust accumulates assets.

• The employer remains liable to ensure 
benefit payments.

• Employer is the trust-beneficiary.  

Defined Benefit PlansDefined Benefit Plans



• Employer can recapture excess plan assets from 
the pension plan, if employer settles the pension 
obligation of the employees  (this is called a 
benefit settlement). 

• The accounting guidelines for plan termination are 
contained in SFAS 88 (the companion standard).

• The plan is an accounting entity separate from the 
employer.

Defined Benefit PlansDefined Benefit Plans



• A plan is said to be funded, when employer makes 
contributions to trust.

• In contributory plans, employees bear part of the 
cost or contribute voluntarily.

• In non-contributory plans, employer bears the 
entire cost.

• In qualified plans, employer can deduct its 
contributions and get a tax free status of earnings 
from fund assets.

Pensions: TerminologyPensions: Terminology



Contribution Plans Benefit Plans

• Employer contributions
are defined

• Retiree benefits depend 
on fund performance

• Retirees bear the 
investment risk

• Retiree benefits are a 
fixed amount

• Employer 
contributions to the 
plan depend on 
promised benefits to 
retirees

• Employers bear the 
investment risk 

Benefit and Contribution Plans: A ComparisonBenefit and Contribution Plans: A Comparison



Pension calculations involve 
actuarial assumptions.

Assumptions involve: mortality rates, 
employee turnover, future salaries, and 
rates of return.

These are 
estimates.

Actuaries and Pension AccountingActuaries and Pension Accounting



Determining employer’s pension obligations to employees

Vested
Benefit
Obligation:
current
salary

Benefits payable
to Vested 
employees

at current pay

Accumulated
Benefit
Obligation:
current
salary

Benefits
payable to
Vested and
Non-vested
employees: 
current pay

ABO Projected
Benefit 
Obligation:
Benefits to
Vested and
Non-vested
employees
at retirement
salary

PBO

Alternative Definitions of EmployeeAlternative Definitions of Employee--ObligationObligation



• Service cost

• Interest cost

• Actual return on plan assets

• Amortization of unrecognized prior service 
cost

• Gains and losses

Measurement of Pension Cost: ComponentsMeasurement of Pension Cost: Components



• Service cost is the expense caused by the increase in 
PBO payable to employees  because of services 
rendered during the current year.

• Interest cost:

• The promised employee benefits are a liability of the 
company.

• The company pays interest on the beginning balance of the 
PBO.

• The settlement rate determines the interest expense.  

Pension Cost: Service and Interest Cost ComponentsPension Cost: Service and Interest Cost Components



• Note that the SFAS 87 refers to a discount rate and 
a settlement rate.  

• The settlement rate determines the amount of 
employee benefits payable, if all employee 
obligations were hypothetically settled today.

• The discount rate is used to discount pension 
benefits (payable in future) to present value 
amounts.

Settlement Rate and Discount RateSettlement Rate and Discount Rate



Actual Return on Plan Assets
=

Plan assets end of the plan year 

less: Plan assets at the beginning of the plan year

less: Employer contributions to the plan during the 
year

add: Employee benefits paid out of plan assets 
during the year

Actual Return on Plan AssetsActual Return on Plan Assets



• Pension expense is reduced by estimated return on 
assets (computed by the actuary.)

• The estimated return is computed as:

the expected rate of return on assets                           
X 

the market-related value of assets

• Any differences between actual and estimated 
returns are periodically amortized to pension 
expense

Note on Actual Return on Plan Assets and Expected Note on Actual Return on Plan Assets and Expected 

ReturnReturn



Using the actual return on assets will expose 
funding pattern to swings in market 
fluctuations.

Actuaries use an estimated return based on 
an expected rate of return and an average 
value of plan assets.

The average value is a calculated value 
based on a moving average [five years or 
less].

Why We Adjust Pension Expense for Estimated Why We Adjust Pension Expense for Estimated 

Return on Plan AssetsReturn on Plan Assets



Any differences between actual and 
estimated returns are recorded in an 
Unexpected Gains and Losses account and 
amortized to pension expense.

This procedure insulates pension 
calculations from sudden market value 
changes. 

Why We Adjust for Estimated Return on Plan AssetsWhy We Adjust for Estimated Return on Plan Assets



• Unrecognized gains and losses are deviations of 
actual amounts from estimated amounts.

• Amortize the Unrecognized  gains & losses only 
if they exceed 10% of: 

 the greater of the PBO or market-
related value (both as of the beginning 
of the year).

• Amortize over the remaining service life of 
active employees.

Amortizing Unrecognized Gains and LossesAmortizing Unrecognized Gains and Losses



• Employees may be granted additional 
pension benefits for services performed in 
prior periods.

• Benefits may be granted:
• upon initial plan adoption, or

• through a plan amendment.

• Interest cost is based on PBO + UPSC

Unrecognized Prior Service Cost (UPSC): DefinedUnrecognized Prior Service Cost (UPSC): Defined



• The UPSC is allocated to pension expense based 
on the remaining service-years of the concerned 
employees.

• Unamortized Unrecognized Prior Service Cost is 
shown on books of pension plan: NOT on 
company’s books.

• The employer records only the periodic 
amortization of Prior Service Cost.

Unrecognized Prior Service Cost (UPSC): AccountingUnrecognized Prior Service Cost (UPSC): Accounting



There are two  types of gains and losses:

1. Unrecognized gains and losses

2. Unrecognized Net Transition Asset or 
Obligation at adoption of SFAS 87

Net Transition Asset or Obligation 
indicates the funded status of the plan at 
adoption of SFAS 87

Gains and LossesGains and Losses



• In both cases, total amounts are shown only on the 
books of the pension plan

• Employer records only the annual amortization

• For Unrecognized gains and losses, there is a 10% 
test (called the 10% corridor test)

• For transition gains and losses, use 15-year 
straight-line amortization

Actuarial G&L and Transition Asset or ObligationActuarial G&L and Transition Asset or Obligation



• Prepaid or Accrued cost is the difference 
between:

total periodic pension cost recognized and 
pension cost actually funded

• If pension cost is less than funded amount, 
it is prepaid cost

• If pension cost is more than the funded 
amount, it is accrued cost

Prepaid and/or Accrued Pension Cost in EmployerPrepaid and/or Accrued Pension Cost in Employer’’s s 

BooksBooks



• Non-funded ABO (minimum liability) to be recognized 
= ABO less fair value of plan assets

• If there is unrecognized prior service cost and the 
minimum liability exceeds the prior service cost, then:

• record a deferred pension cost up to the amount of the 
unrecognized prior service cost

• record an excess over UPSC for the excess of the 
minimum liability over the PSC

Minimum Liability, UPSC, Deferred Pension Cost and Minimum Liability, UPSC, Deferred Pension Cost and 

Excess Additional LiabilityExcess Additional Liability



1. Components of net period pension expense.

2. Schedule showing changes in the benefit 
obligation and plan assets.

3. Reconciliation of the funded status with 
amounts in balance sheet.

4. Weighted-average assumed discount rate, 
projected compensation rate, expected rate 
of return.

Pension DisclosuresPension Disclosures



Chapter 21: Accounting for LeasesChapter 21: Accounting for Leases

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield

Prepared by
Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Explain the nature, economic substance, and 
advantages of lease transactions.

2. Describe the accounting criteria and procedures for 
capitalizing leases by the lessee.

3. Contrast the operating and capitalization methods of 
recording leases.

4. Identify the classifications of leases for the lessor.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 21: Accounting for LeasesChapter 21: Accounting for Leases



5. Describe the lessor’s accounting for direct-
financing leases.

6. Identify special features of lease arrangements 
that cause unique accounting problems.

7. Describe the effect of residual values, 
guaranteed and unguaranteed, on lease 
accounting.

8. Describe the lessor’s accounting for sales-type 
leases.

9. Describe the disclosure requirements for 
leases.

Chapter 21: Accounting for LeasesChapter 21: Accounting for Leases



• The lease is a contractual agreement between the 
lessor and the lessee.

• The lease gives the lessee the right to use specific 
property.

• The lease specifies the duration of the lease and 
rental payments.

• The obligations for taxes, insurance, and 
maintenance may be assumed by the lessor or the 
lessee.

Leasing: BasicsLeasing: Basics



1. Leases may not require any money down.

2. Lease payments are often fixed.

3. Leases reduce the risk of obsolescence to the 
lessee.

4. Leases may contain less restrictive covenants 
than other types of lending arrangements.

5. Leases may be a less costly means of financing.

6. Certain leases may not add to existing debt on 
the balance sheet. 

Advantages of LeasingAdvantages of Leasing



According to the FASB:
• a lease transferring substantially all of the 

benefits and risks of ownership should be 
capitalized.

Transfer of ownership can be assumed only if 
there is a high degree of performance to the 
transfer, that is, the lease is non-cancelable.

Leases that do not substantially transfers benefits 
and risks are operating leases.

Conceptual Nature of a LeaseConceptual Nature of a Lease



Leases that meet any of the following four 
criteria are capital leases for the lessee:

1. Leases, transferring ownership

2. Leases with bargain purchase options

3. Leases with lease terms equal to 75% or more 
of the economic life (75% rule)

4. Leases where the present value of lease 
payments is equal to 90% or more of the fair 
market value (90% rule) 

Accounting by LesseeAccounting by Lessee



Lease Agreement

Is there transfer
of ownership?

Yes 

Is there a bargain
purchase option?

Yes 
No

Is lease term equal
to or greater than
75% of economic

life ?

Yes 

No

Capital
Lease

Operating
Lease

Is present value
of payments 

equal to or more
than 90% FMV?

Yes 

No

Accounting by LesseeAccounting by Lessee



A bargain purchase option

• allows the lessee to buy the leased asset 

• at a price significantly lower than the asset’s 
fair value when the option is exercisable

The difference between the option price, and 
the fair value (when the option is exercisable) 
as determined at the inception of the lease 
must render the option reasonably assured.

The Bargain Purchase OptionThe Bargain Purchase Option



In determining the present value of the lease 
payments, three important factors are 
considered:

1) Minimum lease payments the lessee is expected 
to make under the lease,  

2) Executory costs (insurance, taxes, and 
maintenance), and

3) Discount rate (used by the lessee to determine 
the present value of minimum lease payments)  

The Recovery of Investment Test (90% Test)The Recovery of Investment Test (90% Test)



The minimum lease payments include:

1) minimum rental payments (which may or may 
not be equal to the minimum lease payments)

2) guaranteed residual value at the end of the lease 
term (guaranteed the lessor by the lessee or a 
third party)

3) any penalty required of the lessee for failure to 
extend or renew the lease

4) any bargain purchase option given to lessee

Minimum Lease PaymentsMinimum Lease Payments



1. The lessee computes the present value of the 
lease payments using the lessee’s incremental 
borrowing rate.

2. If the lessee knows the lessor’s implicit 
interest rate and it is less than the lessee’s 
incremental rate, then such implicit rate must 
be used.

3. The lessor’s implicit rate produces the 
following result: 

present value of (minimum lease payments and 
unguaranteed residual value) = fair value of the asset 
to lessor

Discount RateDiscount Rate



• In a capital lease transaction, the lessee records 
an asset and a liability.

• The asset is depreciated by the lessee over the 
economic life of the asset.

• The effective interest method is used to allocate 
the rental payments between principal and 
interest. 

• Depreciation of the asset and discharge of the 
lease obligation are independent accounting 
procedures. 

Accounting for Asset and Liability by LesseeAccounting for Asset and Liability by Lessee



Lessor classifies leases as one of the 
following:

1. Operating lease

2. Direct financing lease

3. Sales-type lease

Classification of Leases: Classification of Leases: LessorLessor



To be classified as an operating lease:

1. The lease doesn’t meet any group 1 criteria 
(same as lessee’s), OR

2. Collectibility of payments isn’t reasonably 
assured, OR

3. Lessor’s performance isn’t substantially 
complete.

Accounting by Accounting by LessorLessor: Classification of Leases: Classification of Leases



To be classified as a direct financing lease the 
lease must meet group 1 criteria (same as 
lessee’s), and the following, group 2 criteria:

1. Collectibility of payments must be reasonably 
assured, and

2. Lessor’s performance must be substantially 
complete, and

3. Asset’s fair value must be equal to lessor’s book 
value   

Accounting by Accounting by LessorLessor: Classification of Leases: Classification of Leases



Lease Agreement

Does  lease meet 
Group 1 criteria?

No 

Is collectibility of
payments assured?

No 
yes

Is lessor’s
performance
substantially
complete ?

No 

yes

Operating
Lease

Direct
financing

Does asset FMV
equal lessor’s
book value?

No 

yes

yes

Sales type

LessorLessor’’ss Criteria for Lease ClassificationCriteria for Lease Classification



• The lessor depreciates the leased asset according 
to its depreciation policy.

• Maintenance costs of the leased asset (payable by 
lessor) are charged to expense.

• Costs, such as finder’s fees and credit checks, are 
amortized over the lease term.

• The leased equipment and accumulated 
depreciation are shown as Equipment Leased to 
Others.

Operating Lease: Operating Lease: LessorLessor



The following information is needed by lessor to 
record a direct financing lease:
Gross investment (lease payments receivable), 
consisting of:

the minimum lease payments and any unguaranteed
residual value at the end of lease term

Unearned interest revenue (difference between gross 
investment and the FMV of the property)

Net investment (gross investment less unearned interest 
revenue) 

Direct Financing: Direct Financing: LessorLessor



DirectDirect--Financing LeaseFinancing Lease



• Residual values

• Sales-type leases (lessor)

• Bargain purchase options

• Initial direct costs

• Current versus noncurrent

• Disclosure

Special Accounting ProblemsSpecial Accounting Problems



• Residual value is the estimated fair value of asset 
at the end of lease term

• May either be guaranteed or unguaranteed

• From lessor’s perspective once the lease rate is 
determined, it makes no difference whether the 
residual value is guaranteed or unguaranteed.

• From lessee’s perspective:
• Guaranteed residual affects minimum lease payment

calculation

• Unguaranteed residual does not

Residual ValuesResidual Values



SalesSales--Type LeaseType Lease



Two types:

• Incremental directs costs paid to third 
parties at origination of lease

• Internal direct costs paid by lessor at 
origination of lease.

Initial Direct CostsInitial Direct Costs



For the lessee, the requirements for capital 
leases are:

• gross amount of assets

• future minimum lease payments

• total non-cancelable minimum sublease rentals

• total contingent rentals

• identify assets separately

• general description of lessee’s arrangements

Disclosure Requirements: LesseeDisclosure Requirements: Lessee



For the lessor, the requirements for sales-
type and direct-financing leases are:

• components of net investment

• future minimum lease payments

• amount of unearned revenue included in revenue

• total contingent rentals

• general description of lessor’s leasing 
arrangements

Disclosure Requirements: Disclosure Requirements: LessorLessor



For the lessor, the requirements for operating 
leases:

• cost and carrying amount

• minimum future rentals

• total contingent rentals

• general description of lessor’s leasing 
arrangements

Disclosure Requirements: Disclosure Requirements: LessorLessor



Chapter 22: Accounting Changes and Error AnalysisChapter 22: Accounting Changes and Error Analysis

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
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1. Identify the types of accounting changes.

2. Describe the accounting for changes in 
accounting principles.

3. Understand how to account for cumulative-
effect accounting changes.

4. Understand how to account for retroactive 
accounting changes.

5. Understand how to account for changes to 
LIFO.

After studying this chapter, you should be 
able to:

Chapter 22: Accounting Changes and Error AnalysisChapter 22: Accounting Changes and Error Analysis



6. Describe the accounting for changes in 
estimates.

7. Identify changes in a reporting entity.

8. Describe the accounting for correction of 
errors.

9. Identify economic motives for changing 
accounting methods.

10. Analyze the effect of errors.

Chapter 22: Accounting Changes and Error AnalysisChapter 22: Accounting Changes and Error Analysis



Restatements EverywhereRestatements Everywhere



APB Opinion No 20 limits the flexibility in 
accounting treatments for similar situations.

The types of accounting changes are:

1. Changes in Accounting Principle

2. Changes in Accounting Estimates

3. Changes in Reporting Entity

4. Errors in Financial Statements

Types of Accounting ChangesTypes of Accounting Changes



• A change in principle involves a change from one 
generally accepted principle to another.

• A change in principle does not result from the 
adoption of a new accounting principle.

• A change to a generally accepted principle (from 
an incorrect principle) is a correction of an error.

Changes in Accounting PrincipleChanges in Accounting Principle



Changes in accounting principle are 
classified into:

1. Cumulative-effect type of accounting change

2. Retroactive-effect type of accounting change

3. Change to the LIFO method of inventory 

Changes in Accounting PrincipleChanges in Accounting Principle



• The catch up method should be used to account 
for these changes.

• Financial statements for prior periods are not 
restated.

• For all prior periods, the following items are 
shown on an as-if basis (as if the new principle 
had been applied):

• income before extraordinary items

• net income

CumulativeCumulative--Effect Type of Accounting ChangeEffect Type of Accounting Change



• The adjusting entry is effective as of the 
beginning of the year.

• Pro forma information is shown only as 
supplementary information.

• Such information may be reported:

• in the income statement, or

• in a separate schedule, or

• in the notes to the financial statements

CumulativeCumulative--Effect Type of Accounting ChangeEffect Type of Accounting Change



• XYZ company changes from the sum-of-the-
years’ digits method to the straight-line method of 
depreciation on Jan. 1, 2004.

• The depreciation amounts are:
Year SYD ST.LINE
2002 $15,000 $8,000
2003 $14,000 $8,000

• The company’s tax rate is 40%.

Record the change as of the beginning of 
2004.

Cumulative Effect: ExampleCumulative Effect: Example



• Year SYD SL Diff Tax
Effect

• 2002 $15,000 $8,000    $7,000 $2,800

• 2003 $14,000 $8,000    $6,000 $2,400
-------- --------

$13,000 $5,200
-------- --------

• Tax liability increases by $5,200

• Tax effect is the difference times the tax rate

Cumulative Effect: ExampleCumulative Effect: Example



Journal Entry:

• Accumulated Depreciation     $13,000
Deferred Tax Asset $5,200
Cumulative Effect of 
Change in Principle $7,800

The debit to accumulated depreciation restores the 
account balance on a straight- line basis.

The credit to Cumulative Effect is the income 
effect (net of tax effect).

Cumulative Effect: ExampleCumulative Effect: Example



• The cumulative effect of the new method at the 
beginning of the period is determined. 

• Prior period statements are recast based on the 
new principle.

• Any cumulative effect of prior periods is adjusted 
to the beginning retained earnings balance.

RetroactiveRetroactive--Effect Type of Accounting ChangeEffect Type of Accounting Change



The five situations requiring restatement of all 
prior period statements are:

• A change from the LIFO inventory method to another 
method 

• A change in the method of accounting for long-term 
construction type contracts  

• A change from or to the full-cost method in extractive 
industries

• Issue of financials to obtain first time financing 

• A pronouncement recommending retroactive adjustment

RetroactiveRetroactive--Effect Type of Accounting ChangeEffect Type of Accounting Change



Retained Earnings account is shown as follows:

Balance at beginning of year : $ 
XXX

Adjustment for the cumulative

effect on prior years: $   XX

Balance at beginning (as adjusted): $   XX

Net Income : $ 
XXX

Balance at end of year: $ XXX

Income Statement PresentationIncome Statement Presentation



• Changes in estimates are accounted for on a 
prospective basis

• Estimates that are later determined to be incorrect 
should be corrected as changes in estimates

• Examples of changes in estimates involve:

• Service life of depreciable assets

• Salvage values of assets

• Estimates of bad debts

Reporting a Change in EstimateReporting a Change in Estimate



• An accounting change may result in a different 
reporting entity.

• Financial statements are then restated for all prior 
periods presented.

• Examples of a change in reporting entity are:
• consolidated statements in lieu of individual financials

• changes in subsidiaries in a consolidated group

• a change in method for accounting for subsidiaries and 
investments

Reporting a Change in EntityReporting a Change in Entity



Corrections are treated as prior period 
adjustments to retained earnings for the earliest 
period being reported.

Examples of accounting errors are:
• A change from an accounting principle that is not 

generally accepted to one that is accepted 

• Mathematical errors

• Changes in estimates that were not prepared in good faith

• A failure to properly accrue or defer expenses or revenues

• A misapplication or omission of relevant facts  

Reporting the Correction of an ErrorReporting the Correction of an Error



• Changes are appropriate when the new principle is 
preferable to the existing accounting principle.

• The new principle should result in improved 
financial reporting.

• A change is considered preferable if a FASB 
standard:
• creates a new accounting principle, or

• expresses preference for a new principle, or

• rejects a specific accounting principle

When is a Change in Accounting Principle When is a Change in Accounting Principle 

Appropriate?Appropriate?



Managers and others may have a self- interest in 
adopting principles or standards:

Companies may want to be less politically visible 
to avoid regulation;

A company’s capital structure may affect its 
selection of accounting standards;

Managers may select accounting standards to 
maximize their performance-related bonuses;

Companies have an incentive to manage or 
smooth earnings

Motivations for ChangeMotivations for Change



• Firms do not correct errors that are insignificant.

• Three questions must be answered in this regard:

What type of error is involved?

What correcting entries are needed?

How are financial statements to be 
restated?

• Error corrections are reported as prior period 
adjustments to the beginning retained earnings 
balance in the current year. 

Error Analysis in GeneralError Analysis in General



Errors can occur in the following financial 
statements:

• Balance sheet 

• Income statement 

• Balance sheet and the income statement

• Errors can be:

Counterbalancing (or self-correcting over two 
accounting periods)

Non-counterbalancing (more than two periods 
needed)   

Types of ErrorsTypes of Errors



Questions to be considered are:
• Are the books closed?

• Are comparative statements presented?

An entry is needed to adjust the beginning 
retained earnings balance if:

• the books are closed, and the error is not 
counterbalanced, or

• the books are not closed, and the company is in 
the second year, and the error is already 
counterbalanced.

Counterbalancing ErrorsCounterbalancing Errors



• A change to or from the equity method requires 
restatement of all prior period statements.

• A change from the equity method to the fair 
value method must be made when:

the investor’s level of influence falls below the required 
percentage of ownership

• A change from the fair value method to the 
equity method must be made when:

the investor’s level of influence rises above the required 
percentage of ownership

Changing From and to the Equity MethodChanging From and to the Equity Method



• The cost basis for accounting purposes is the 
carrying amount of the investment at the date of 
the change.
The earnings and losses (previously recognized) remain 
part of the carrying value

Any amortization previously needed under the equity 
method ceases

• To the extent that dividends received by investor 
exceed investor’s share of investee’s earnings in 
subsequent periods:
Such excesses are reductions of the investment carrying 
amount    

Changing from the Equity MethodChanging from the Equity Method



The following amounts are retroactively 
adjusted (as if the investor had held the 
investment during all prior periods):

• The carrying value of the investment

• The results of current and prior period operations

• The retained earnings of the investor

• Any balances in unrealized holding gains and losses 
are eliminated.

• The available-for-sale classification is also removed.

Changing to the Equity MethodChanging to the Equity Method



Chapter 23: Statement of Cash FlowsChapter 23: Statement of Cash Flows

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield
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Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Describe the purpose of the statement of cash 
flows.

2. Identify the major classifications of cash 
flows.

3. Differentiate between net income and net cash 
flows from operating activities.

4. Contrast the direct and the indirect methods of 
calculating net cash flow from operating 
activities.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 23: Statement of Cash FlowsChapter 23: Statement of Cash Flows



5. Determine net cash flows from investing and 
financing activities.

6. Prepare a statement of cash flows.

7. Identify sources of information for a statement 
of cash flows.

8. Identify special problems in preparing a 
statement of cash flows.

9. Explain the use of a work sheet in preparing a 
statement of cash flows.

Chapter 23: Statement of Cash FlowsChapter 23: Statement of Cash Flows



The information may help users assess the 
following aspects:

• The entity’s ability to generate future cash flows

• The entity’s ability to pay dividends and meet 
obligations 

• The reasons as to why net income and net cash 
flow from operating activities differ 

• Cash and non-cash investing and financing 
activities during the year

Usefulness of the Statement of Cash FlowsUsefulness of the Statement of Cash Flows



The cash flow statement provides 
information about:

• the cash receipts (cash inflows), and

• uses of cash (cash outflows) during the period

Inflows and outflows are reported for:
• operating activities,

• investing activities, and 

• financing activities during the period

The Cash Flow StatementThe Cash Flow Statement



Cash
Pool

Operating
activities

Investing
activities

Financing
activities

inflows

Operating
activities

Investing
activities

Financing
activities

outflows

Statement of Cash Flows: ConceptStatement of Cash Flows: Concept



There are two methods of preparing the 
statement of cash flows:

1. the indirect method and

2. the direct method

The indirect method derives cash flows 
from accrual basis statements.

The direct method determines cash flows 
directly for each source or use of cash.

Preparing a Statement of Cash FlowsPreparing a Statement of Cash Flows



Earned 
Revenues

Expenses
Incurred

Net Income

+

-

Operating
cash flow

Eliminate
Non-cash revenues

Eliminate
Non-cash charges

Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect Method: ConceptStatement of Cash Flows: Indirect Method: Concept



Accrual Basis Statements Cash Flow Statement

Income Statement
items & Changes in
Current Assets and
Current Liabilities

Operating activities:
Adjust net income for accruals
and non-cash charges to get 
cash flows

Balance Sheet: Changes 
In Non-Current Assets

Investing activities:
Inflows from sale of assets and 
Outflows from purchases of 
assets

Balance Sheet: Changes in
Non-Current Liabilities

and Equity

Financing activities:
Inflows and outflows
from loan and equity
transactions 

The Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect MethodThe Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect Method



• From sales of goods or 
services

• From returns on loans 
(interest) and returns on 
equity securities 
(dividends)

• To suppliers for inventory

• To employees for services

• To government for taxes

• To lenders for interest

• To others for expenses

Inflows Outflows

Direct Method: Operating ActivitiesDirect Method: Operating Activities



• For the direct and indirect methods the 
sections reporting investing and
financing activities are the same. 

• The net inflows or outflows for each 
section (under the two methods) are 
identical.

• The operating activities are reported 
differently.

Investing and Financing ActivitiesInvesting and Financing Activities



Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Income $ XXX
Adjustments (to arrive at cash flow from operations) $   XX

(List of individual inflows and outflows)
Net cash flow from operating activities $ XXX

Cash flows from investing activities:
(List of individual inflows and outflows) $   XX

Net cash flow from investing activities $ XXX

Cash flows from financing activities:
(List of individual inflows and outflows) $   XX

Net cash flow from financing activities $ XXX

Format of the Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect Format of the Statement of Cash Flows: Indirect 

MethodMethod



Major Classes of Cash Receipts and PaymentsMajor Classes of Cash Receipts and Payments



Formula to Compute Cash Receipts from CustomersFormula to Compute Cash Receipts from Customers



Formula to Compute Cash Payments for Operating Formula to Compute Cash Payments for Operating 

ExpensesExpenses



Note the following adjustments to net 
income in deriving operating cash flow:

• Loss on sale of assets is added to net income

• Gain on sale of assets is deducted from net income

• Discount on bonds payable (as amortized) is 
added to net income

• Premium on bonds payable (as amortized) is 
deducted from net income       

Indirect Method: Special ItemsIndirect Method: Special Items



Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts (individually): Inflows $ XXX
Cash payments to suppliers (separately):  outflows ($ XXX)
Net cash flow from operating activities $ XXX

Cash flows from investing activities:
(List of individual inflows and outflows) $   XX

Net cash flow from investing activities $ XXX

Cash flows from financing activities:
(List of individual inflows and outflows) $   XX

Net cash flow from financing activities $ XXX

Format of the Statement of Cash Flows: Direct Format of the Statement of Cash Flows: Direct 

MethodMethod



less equals

Cash Receipts

From sale of
goods and
services to
customers

From receipts
of interest and

dividends 

Cash Payments

To suppliers

To employees

For operating exp

For interest

For taxes

Cash
flow
from

operations

Direct Method: ConceptDirect Method: Concept



Cash receipts from customers:

= Revenue from credit sales  + Decrease in A/Rec balances
- Increase  in A/Rec balances

Cash Flow Statement: Direct MethodCash Flow Statement: Direct Method



Cash payments to suppliers:
= Cost of goods sold  + Increase in inventory

- Decrease in inventory

+ Decrease in accounts payable
- Increase in accounts payable

Cash Flow Statement: Direct MethodCash Flow Statement: Direct Method



Cash payments for operating and other expenses:

= Operating expenses   + Increase in prepaid expenses
- Decrease in prepaid expenses

+ Decrease in accrued expenses payable

- Increase in accrued expenses payable

Cash Flow Statement: Direct MethodCash Flow Statement: Direct Method



• Transactions not involving cash inflows or cash 
outflows are non-cash transactions.

• They are not reported in the body of the cash flow 
statement.

• If material, they are reported as notes to the 
statement or in a supplementary schedule to the 
financial statements.

• Example: Issue of bonds (payable) for purchase of 
land.

Reporting Significant NonReporting Significant Non--Cash TransactionsCash Transactions



• A work sheet may be useful when a number of 
adjustments are needed.

• Involves three steps:
1. Enter beginning and ending balance sheet data.

2. Enter the data that explains the changes in balance 
sheet accounts (other than cash).

3. Enter the increase or decrease in cash on cash line 
and at the bottom of the work sheet. This entry 
results in the totals of the reconciling items to agree.

WorksheetWorksheet



Chapter 24: Full Disclosure in Financial ReportingChapter 24: Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting

Intermediate Accounting, 11th ed.
Kieso, Weygandt, and Warfield

Prepared by
Jep Robertson and Renae Clark

New Mexico State University



1. Review the full disclosure principle and 
describe problems of implementation.

2. Explain the use of notes in financial statement 
preparation.

3. Describe the disclosure requirements for 
major segments of a business.

4. Describe the accounting problems associated 
with interim reporting.

After studying this chapter, you should 
be able to:

Chapter 24: Full Disclosure in Financial ReportingChapter 24: Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting



5. Identify the major disclosures found in the 
auditor’s report.

6. Understand management’s responsibilities for 
financials.

7. Identify issues related to financial forecasts and 
projections.

8. Describe the profession’s response to fraudulent 
financial reporting.

Chapter 24: Full Disclosure in Financial ReportingChapter 24: Full Disclosure in Financial Reporting



The full disclosure principle calls for financial 
reporting of significant facts affecting the judgment 
of an informed reader.

Two problems of implementing this principle are 
costs of disclosure and information overload.

The profession is still in the process of developing 
guidelines as to:
– whether a given transaction should be disclosed

– what format this disclosure should take

The Full Disclosure PrincipleThe Full Disclosure Principle



Types of Financial InformationTypes of Financial Information



Reasons for increasing reporting 
requirements:

• Complexity of the business environment 
(derivatives, business combinations, pensions)

• Necessity for timely information (interim data, 
forecasts)

• Accounting used as a control and monitoring 
device 

Increase in Reporting RequirementsIncrease in Reporting Requirements



1. Notes amplify or explain items presented in the 
body of the financial statements.

2. A statement that identifies the accounting policies
of the entity must be disclosed (Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies).

3. Some common notes are:
– Inventory

– Deferred taxes

– PPE

– Contingencies and commitments

– Changes in accounting policies

Notes to the Financial StatementsNotes to the Financial Statements



Related party transactions (transactions not 
carried out at arm’s-length)

Required disclosures:
• The nature of the relationship

• A description of the transactions

• The dollar amounts of transactions

• Amounts due from or due to related parties at the
balance sheet date

Disclosure of Special Transactions or Special IssuesDisclosure of Special Transactions or Special Issues



Notes to the financial statements must 
explain any significant financial events that 
occurred after the balance sheet date, but 
before the issue of the financial statements.

Financial statement period Post-balance sheet events

Balance
sheet date

Issue date

PostPost--Balance Sheet EventsBalance Sheet Events



Two types of post-balance sheet events
must be disclosed:

1. Events that provide additional evidence 
about conditions that existed at the balance 
sheet date that require adjustments.

2. Events that arose subsequent to the balance 
sheet date, not requiring adjustments.

Types of Transactions to be DisclosedTypes of Transactions to be Disclosed



• Investors need information regarding income 
statement, balance sheet, and cash flow 
statement.

• Investors also need information about segments 
to assess profitability.

• Segmented information may however harm 
reporting firms (disclosure of data useful to 
competitors).

Reporting by ConglomeratesReporting by Conglomerates



Objectives of reporting segmented information are 
to provide information about different types of 
business activities and the different economic 
environments in which the entities operate.

Reporting by ConglomeratesReporting by Conglomerates



An operating segment is a component that: 

• engages in business activities,

• is reviewed by the conglomerate’s chief operating 
officer; and

• produces discrete financial information from the 
internal financial reporting system. 

Identifying Operating SegmentsIdentifying Operating Segments



Operating segments may be aggregated if 
they have the same basic characteristics in:

• products and services rendered

• production process

• type or class of customer

• methods of product or service distribution

• regulatory environment 

Aggregation of Operating SegmentsAggregation of Operating Segments



An operating segment is identified as a 
reportable segment if it satisfies one or 

more of the following criteria:
1. revenue criterion

2. profit or loss criterion

3. identifiable assets criterion

Reportable SegmentsReportable Segments



• Segment revenue 

• Segment profit or loss 

• Identifiable assets

• Is more than ten percent of  the 
combined revenue of all 
operating segments

• Is ten percent or more of the 
greater of: the combined profit 
of all operating segments not 
showing a loss, or the combined 
loss of all operating segments 
reporting a loss

• Ten percent or more of the 
combined assets of all operating
segments 

Criterion Thresholds

Reportable SegmentsReportable Segments



• General information about its operating segments

• Segment profit and loss and related information

• Segment assets

• Reconciliation of segment revenues, profits and 
losses, and segment assets

• Information about products and services and 
geographical areas

• Major customers

Required Segmented InformationRequired Segmented Information



• Two approaches: integral and discrete

• Most companies employ both approaches 
for

• Reporting requirements:
– Use of same accounting principles

– Period costs often charged as incurred

– Not required to publish Balance Sheet or SCF

Interim Reporting RequirementsInterim Reporting Requirements



• Advertising and similar costs

• Expenses subject to year-end adjustments

• Income taxes

• Extraordinary items

• Changes in accounting principles

• Earnings per share

Problems of Interim ReportingProblems of Interim Reporting



Auditor’s reporting standards:

• states whether the financial statements are in 
conformity with GAAP

• identify circumstances in which GAAP have not 
been consistently applied

• disclosures in financial statements are deemed 
adequate unless otherwise stated

• an opinion on the financial statements, if possible

AuditorAuditor’’s Reportss Reports



The auditor can render or provide:

• A qualified opinion

• An unqualified opinion

• Reasons requiring the addition of explanatory 
paragraphs to the unqualified report

• An adverse opinion (circumstances)

• A disclaimer 

AuditorAuditor’’s Opinions Opinion



• Management’s Discussion and Analysis
covers three aspects of an enterprise
1. Liquidity

2. Capital resources

3. Results of operations

• Identifies favorable or unfavorable trends 

• Identifies any significant events and 
uncertainties that affect the three aspects 

ManagementManagement’’s Reports Report



• The investing public needs and wants 
more and better information about 
corporate expectations.

• The disclosures take one of two forms:
1. Financial forecast of an entity’s expected 

financial position

2. Financial projection based on hypothetical 
assumptions 

Financial Forecasts and ProjectionsFinancial Forecasts and Projections



• Corporations can reach more users by the internet

• Internet reporting can make traditional reports 
more useful:

• Corporations can report more timely information;

• They can also report disaggregated data; 

• There is, however, concern about security on the
internet (hackers).

Internet Financial ReportingInternet Financial Reporting



Defined as “intentional or reckless 
conduct, whether act or omission, that 
results in materially misleading financial 
statements.”

Could be gross and deliberate distortions

Could be misapplication of accounting 
principles or failure to properly disclose 
material items

Fraudulent Financial ReportingFraudulent Financial Reporting



• Impacted by internal and external
environments

• Opportunities increase in certain 
situations:

1. Weak board of directors or audit committee

2. Weak internal controls

3. Unusual or complex transactions

4. Accounting issues requiring significant subjective 
judgments

5. Ineffective internal audit function

Fraudulent Financial Reporting: CausesFraudulent Financial Reporting: Causes



• Accounting is greatly influenced by its 
environment.

• Alternative presentations of certain transactions 
will continue to exist.

• The Conceptual Framework will hopefully 
eliminate unneeded diversity in reporting practices.

• New oversight environment will impact accounting 
choices.

Criteria for Making Accounting and Reporting Criteria for Making Accounting and Reporting 

ChoicesChoices
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